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OSBORNE GROUP HOLDINGS LTD

STRATEGIC REPORT
FOR THE 18 MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2020

The directars present their strategic report fos the group for the 18 month period ended 30 September 2020,

We are a developer, building, civil engineering and properly maintenance contractor and off-site manutacturer of
buildings. Our diverse ronge of businesses allow us 10 explore opportunities with our customers. whist also spreading
risk.

Our core activities of building, civil engineering and property maintenance generate cash fo oliow us fo invest in
dev_elopment ond other strategic opportunities, including the provision of buidings manufactured off-site. Investing
in Ieng-term opportunities provides the potential to improve our long-term return 1o shareholders. and is aligned wilh
our goal of creating sustainabte business value growth.

Principal activities and review of the business

The company does nof trade bt is the ultimate parent ond holding company of:

» The Geolirey Osborne Limited group

« The Osborne Development; He!dings Lid group

» Innovare Systems timited

The principo! activities of the Geolfrey Osborne limited group ore bulding and civil engineering contracting ond
property maintenance, Atter the period end, Geoffrey Osbome Limited disposed of ifs principal civil engineering
conlrocting business, Osbome Infrastructure Limited on 16 September 2021. The scle will faciitate the alignment of
the grovip's remaining businesses enabling them to work together with greater clarity of purpose.

The principol octivily of the Osbome Developments Holdings LId group is properfy deveiopment,

The principot activities of Innovare Systems Limited are the design. monufacture ond instoliation of structural
insuloted panel systems.

Overview of the business
The grawp’s key financial and non-financiai performonce indicalors during the linoncial period were os follows:
18 months ended Year ended
30 September 2020 31 March 2019
£m £m
Turnover 560.0 3921
{Loss) / profit betore toxation (15.0) 23
Totol net assets 8.5 178
Net cash’ 88 27.8
Secured 12-month order book 270.5 306.5
Accident Frequency Rale [AFR) 012 0,17
Lost Time injury Frequency Rote (LTIFR} 0.43 . 0.4
Environmental Incidence frequency (EF) 0.10 0.i2
Average number of employees ' ) 966 1,052
Voluntary employee churn role . 11.0% 15.0%
Employee engagement ki1 3.27

“ Net cash equals Cash at bank ond in hand tess bank loons ond amounts due under finance leoses.

Tusnover was divided omong the group’'s key market sectorss as foltows:

18 months ended Year ended

30 September 2020 31 March 2019

£m £m

Aftordable Housing Montenance 64.1 58.8
Affordable Housing New Build 40,1 39%.2
Commercial 823 48.8
€ducofion 1019 94.7
Healthcare 0.2 03
Highways 1137 70.5
Raii 157.4 78.5
Contracling octivities ' 559.7 390.8
Sale of development iand - 09
Renialincome 03 04

560.0 392,




OSBORNE GROUP HOLDINGS LTD

STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED) ’
FOR THE 18 MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2020

Overview of the business (continved)

The loss belore tax of £15.0m (year ended 31 March 2019: profit £2,3m) 55 extremely disoppointing but must be set
against the unprecedented chollenges presented by the COVID-19 pondemic. Against this bockdrop., the group
has continued the slralegic realignment of its businesses to focus on sustainable opportunities utilising the group's

core strengths to create o resilient business thot is less exposed to market fluctuations.

The infrostructure business's core activity continued to be the construction and maintenance ot tcansport-related
infrastructure, including roads, bridges and rail-related infcastructure . The priontisation of infrostructure projects by
the goveinment as a means to kick-start the economy foliowing the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic has
provided a healthy pipetine of opportunities on which the business is capitaising through broadening its customer
base and scope of services. Recent owards include new Rail Services mointenance contracts at Clapham
Junction and Guidford stations and two new modular car parks ot Hendon and Stevenage.

The focus of the Construction business s 1o seécure and deliver sociaj infrastructure projects. concentrating on the
education and residential sectors, including purpose built student accommodation, local outhority housing, mixed
use schemes. self-build developments and modular schemes. Productivily was severely impacted by COVID-19
restrictions en a number of the Construction business's projects due to their tocation. with safe working practices
being paorficulory difficull 10 establish on congested. city centre sites. There wil] be a shift in emphasis towards
development led projects ond collaborating with other parts of the group to deliver sustainable, intelligently
designed spaces that improve people’s ives. The Construction business has recently secured a number of
significant projects ond has o pipeline of identified prospects which witl provide o so'id workstream for the future.

The group’s property maintenance business operotes under fromework ferm maintenance contracts with o number
of lacal authorities and housing ossociations. Housing retrofits 1o help meet the govemment's carbon reduclion
torgets provide o promising source of future revenue for our housing maintenance business, which has aready been
successiul in being awarded a place on the Retrofit innovation Parinersiup Framework for London.

Innovare, the group’s offste manufocturing business, is focused on supplementing its core education offering by
developing innovative housing solutions and delvering projects for the group’s development business. in portnership
with our Construction business.

COVID-19 Pandemic :
The COVID-19 pandemig hos creoted unprecedentad disruption across the werld leading to fmpacts on the giebal
economy, global heaithcare and peop:e’s health. well-being ond movements,

The group entered the pandemic period in March 2020 in a solid position from both o finoncial and operationol
perspective. During the first lockdown there were immediate impocts on the business and measures were put in
place to allow safer. socially distanced working conditions. Most businesses within the group were able to make
adjustments to allow COVID secure working and enable our leams to return 1o work as quickly and as safely os
possible. Our Infrastructure business in parlicuiar has benefited from framework contracts tasgeted and secured pre-
COVID which placed the businessin a strong position to support the UK through the pandemic. However, our other
businesses did suffer a downturn in volumes due to the pandemic. The Construction business had o number of
difficult projects on city centre sites where social distancing rules have severely impacted produclivity. innovare
had to severely curtail toctory production to comply with the government’s COVID-19 regutations; this has had o
knock on effect into the current year due to the lead times in production. Our Property Services business was olso
aftected during the initio! lockdown as our warkfarce was no! aflowed 10 enter people’s homes for anything other
than emergency repairs.

Business continuity plons had to be updated and invoked swiftly during a kme when the conditions in the economy
and the government's response was changing rapidly. The group has primarny locused on the satety and well.
being of its employees. most of whom have continued to work throughout the pandemic on sites or from home.

The group has taken advantage of some of the government support on offer by utilising the Coronavirus Job
Retention Scheme. The group furloughed 30% of its fota) workforce in April 2020, reducing to just over 22% in June, 8%
by August and everyone relurning by October. The [argest proportion of thase furioughed initiolly were in our
property services and monufactuing businesses.

The group hos continued 1o operate throughout the government imposed lockdowns since 30 September 2020.
Changes to working practices made during the first wave continued 10 be enforced and siricter measures have
been implemented where necessary. Infrasiructure projects continue to be promoted by the government and as
such demand is currentiy high. The effects of COVID-19 are ikely {0 continue for some lime to come but with the
successful roll out of the vaccinalion programme and Ihe gradual easing of restrictions the Board are hopefu! thot
the group’s businesses will be able 1o continue to operate as near normal as possibte.



OSBORNE GROUP HOLDINGS LTD

STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE 18 MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2020

forward orders

The secured 12 month order book ol £270.500.000 at 30 September 2020 was 0.4% higher than a yeor eortier (30
September 2019: £269.400,000. 31 March 2019; £306,500.000). The secured 12 month figure is the estimoted sales for
the next {2 months on projects where there is either o contract or a letier of intent. In addition . the group had
£58.200,000 {30 September 2019; £75,100,000, 31 March 2019: £65.300.000) of orders for the next 12 monthsin second
stage or single source negotiation. The mx of work reflects the changing operating environment and the
implementation ol the group’s strategy, with the Infrastructure business benefiting from fong-term framewaork
ogreements with Highways England ond Netwark Rail and govemment<{ed infrastructure investment initiatives
during the pondemic. and Built Envifonment implementng a more focused, selective approach to project

The overot ferward order book at 31 August 2024 stood ot £825.800,000 {30 Seprtember 2020, £515.400.000; 30 Aprit
2019: £766.000.000).

Salely, heatth and environment (SHE)}

The group's safety, heaith and environment (SHE} performance contributes 10 our overall reputation with
stakeholders. Any incident that causes harm hos the potential to damage our reputation ond reduces the likethood
of secunng future work, The group operales established ond robust heaith, safety and wellbeing systems, which
include regulor site visits by internal SHE stalf, regular monitoring and reporting. and recording improvement
opporiunities ncluding near misses. Regulor heallh, sofely ond wellbeing briefings and our STOP Think! behaviourat
tgin.ng also forms part of the miligation of this risk, During the current financiol period the group has upgraded its
SHE maonagement systems, transfeinng ol data, procedures. guidance and forms to a digilalised plotiorm, providing
more detailed ond accessible management informatign from which senior management decisions are made.

Whilst satety remains ot fundomentalimportance in everything the group does. the directors continue to recognise
that heaith and weltbeing are of equal importance. The group has had to odap! its approach 1o health and
wellbeing traming dunng the perod with oll foce to foce training suspended due to COVID-19. Having previously
token part in the Mind Workplace Welibeing Index and achieving o Silver Award for 2019-20, the Group is now
working with the Raid Safely Standords 8oard to develop o Heallh and Wellbeing Index which & more specifically
oligned to the seclors in which we work. A prof ndex s underway with o view {0 bringing it online in 2022,
Recognising thot mental health is sti incredibly important in the construction sector, the group has over 75 trained
mental health first aiders in ploce._

The group has conlinued to target a number of key SHE perfarmance indicators during the 18 month period ended
30 September 2020. The headline figure of Accident Frequency Raote (AFR] has improved from 0.17 16 0.12. This
valuoble, albeit lagging. indicolor s supplemented by other leading indicators such os senior manogement tours,
identification of Improvement Opporunifies, irainng ollendance ond inspection close out rales. Lost Time tnjury
Frequency Rate (LTIFR) hos detenarated stightly from 0.41 to 0.43 and Environmental incidence Frequency rate has
improved from 0.1210 0.10. To focus on improvement of these indicolors the group hos devetoped o sef of task-
focused objectives and key resulls, with designated responsibilities tor indwiduals, afigned with the findings ¢f the
annua! health and safety audit process.

Sustalnablity

Unsustainable resource use, climate change. pollution and biodiversity ali present significont challenges fo
humanity. As the worid recovers from the COVID-19 pandemic, the group is keen to play its part in "building back
better. by invesling in ond collaborating with the communities we serve, being an employer of choice, achieving
net zero carbon emissions by 2035 and protecting ond enhoncing our environment for present and future
generations. The group is developing its detailed Carbon Strotegy fo atign with the nine ‘Consiruct Zero' priorities
developed by the Constiuction Leadership Council.

Improving construction methods are key to the construction sector improving environmental standards and
sustainability. Construction activities are estimated to contribute 40% of the UK's total carbon foolpant, ond waste
statistics showed thot in 2016, 63% of the total waste stream in England was attributed to construction, demdgiition,
ond excovotion woste with 5 million tonnes still gaing to landfill. The ability of the construction sector to leam,
develop and innovate has far reaching impaocts on society and on the planet, The construction business is charged
with developing a more systamised appreach to buildng, with increasing leve's of offsite, pre-manufactured
components and stronger, long-term partnerships with speciotist suppliers to develop cost-effective [ow carbon
solutions.

In March this yeor the greup refreshed ils Sustanability Strategy ond incorporated several new ambitious
improvement objeclives, including o commitmeni to science:based targets, biodiversity assessments. achieving (SO
20400 for sustainable procurement by 2024 and uitimately reaching zero carbon by 2035. At o product fevel the
group i focused an cregting and introducing carbon neutral sotutions. The group 1 developing ils digital strategy to
integrate and streamtine ils processes, pulting reliable doto ol the hearl of the decision-moking process ong
empowernng users 1o deliver sustainabile efficiencies and improved resource wlilisation

In Aptil the group lounch its new Car Policy. substantally increasing the range ol hybrid and eteciric options
ovailable. enabling ol company car drivers to benefit from lower emissions. The group anticipotes that by 2024
nearly $0% of our vehicles will be hybnd or full electnc cars.




OSBORNE GROUP HOLDINGS LTD

STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE 18 MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2020

Energy performance resulis

This is the first reporting period tor which the group is required to repori its energy performeance resuits under the
Companies {Directors' Report] and Limited Liobility Porinerships [Energy and Carbon Report) Reguiations 2018. In
line with its previous financial reporting dote, the group hos chosen to collect and report datain respect of ils
energy performance tor years 1o 31 March, and is presenting data for the yeors to 31 March 2021 and 2020. This
report covers the company ond its subsidiary undertakings.

The tolal consumption figures for energy supplies are as foltows:

Year ended 31 Year ended 30

Maorch 202} March 2020

. kWh kWh

Transportation (Scope 1, 2 and 3) 3,268,601 8.928.066

Goseous ond ofher fuels (Scope t} 9.280.801 5.384,442

Gaseous and other fuels (Scope 3} 1.829.207 -

Gnd-Supplied Elecincily {Scope 2) 1.632.663 2,398,544

Total 16,031 272 16,711,052
The total emission figures for energy supplies are as folows!

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

tCO2e {CO2e

Transporiation (Scope 1.2 and 3} 776 2,267

Goseous ond other fuels {Scope 1) 2,363 1.353

Gaseous and other fuels (Scope 3) 468 -

Grid-Supplied Electrcity (Scope 2} : 38i 613

Total 3.988 4233

Scope 1 consumpiion and emissions relote to direct combustion of natural gas, and fuels utilised for iransporiation
operations. such as the group's vehicle fleet.

Scope 2 consumption and emsssions relate to indirect emissions relating to the consumption of purchosed electricity
in day-to-doy business operations.

Scope 3 consumption ond emssions relote to emissions resulting fiom sources not direclly owned by the group, such
as business fravel undertaken in employee-owned vehicles. For the year ended 31 March 2021, Scope 3 doto
includes subcontractor fuel used on the group's projects.

Scope 1 and 2 consumption ond CO2e emission data has been calculated in line with the 2019 UX Government
environmentol reporiing guidonce. ultilising the current published kWh calorific value and kg CO2e emission factors
relevont for the reporting yeor ended 31 March 2021,

The intensity ratio (which measures emissions in relation 10 annuat turmover) is as foliows:

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

tCO2¢e / tm tCO2e / Em

Intensity rotio : 13 1.3
Annual equivalent turnover (Em) 3529 3733

Annual equivalent turnover is calculated by apportioning reported turnover to the relevant periods,

Waste management

As with energy performance. the group has chosen to collect and report data in respect of its waste monogement
performaonce for years to 31 Morch. and is presenting dato for the years 1o 31 March 2021 and 2020, This dota
below covers the compaony and ifs subsidiary undertokings.

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

tonnes tfonnes

Tolal waste 157.742.5 181.979.1
Total wosle diverted from tandfill 142,094.1 160,412.1
Percentoge diverted from tandlill " 90.1% 88.1%




OSBORNE GROUP HOLDINGS LTD

STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE 18 MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2020

Corporate responsiblity and communily Investment

The group takes its social responsibilities seriously. tnits drive 1o be a sustainabte business. the group recogrises that
its impact goes far beyond the physico! build. How we behave, how we treat ofthers in our work and public
communities, how we leam. develop and innovote hos for reaching impacts on society, and is ot the heart of vision
and purpose: to use modem methods of construction and low corbon design to deliver sustainable, intelligently
designed spaces that improve people’s lives. Guidance on professional and ethical conduct is set out in the group's
Governonce mManuol, which is ovoiloble 1o all employees on the group’s intranet, The board futly support a more
diverse and inclusive business, and our Equality. Diversity ond Inclusion ond sustainability strategies collectively
support us in this aim.

The group contributed £40.000 in charitable donations during the financial perod (year ended 31 March 2019:
£78.000). The decreose reflected the challenging operaling environment prasented by the COVID-19 pandemic, in
terms of both the group’s financial performance and the restrictions placed on communal aclivities. The group
retains its commilment 1o donate 1% of its profits to charitable causes, prorilising requests from local chariities,
chorities thot coter for the core of children, the disabled, or the disadvantaged or underpriviteged. and
Construction related charities.

We aclively encoutoge engogement with our local communities through individuol ond group octivities and
events, listening to customer and commiunity concerns ond acting accordingly. Giving bock o our local
communities continues to grow with a variety of initiotives, incjuding creoting pathways 1o emptoyment through
work experience placemenls, mock interviews and mentoring.

c brand and val

The group's business is complex. Every doy there ore thousonds of interactions between colleagues and with
customers, suppliers and Ihe public.

The group hus o cleary defined purpose: to provide sustainable, intelligently designed spaces that improve
people’s lives. The group's vision is to deliver its purpose through the use of modern methods of construction and
low carbon design. with on embedded learming culture and driven by its core values : qualily, integrity. openness,
caring and progressive.

A Code of Ethics has been pubfished. detailing the group's volues and providing guidance to direct our employees’
decision making in their everyday actions when needed. The Code helps the directors ond all employees to hold
themselves ond colleagues lo account for their behoviour. it explains what individuals should do if they experience
any behaviour fhat they believe is unethical, itlegal or which falis short of our expected stondards. The group hos a
whistieblowing policy 10 protect employees who wish fo report any unethical. ilegal or inappropriate behaviour,
and works with Protect, an ndependen! whistleblowing charity, who provide confidential odvice.

Supply chain

Warking mare closely with key supply chain partners is aligned 1o our long term suslainable business goal. as it
provides more cerlainty 1o psoject outcomes, and remains an important part of the group’s supply chain opproach.

One important aspect o our relalionship with our supply chain is paying faily. We continue 1o monitor and report
on our payment practices in accordance with statutory requirements.  Geoffrey Osborne Limited's average time to
pay has improved to 3) days {or the six months ended 30 September 2020 and 30 days for the six months ended 31
March 2021 {six months ended 31 March 2019: 42 doys). with 77% of invoices paid within agreed temms {§ months
ended 31 March 2019: 63%). The contractors sector average time 10 pay s 35 doys. with 65% of invoices paid within
terms

The group is proud lo be a signatory to the Prompt Poyment Code, to which we undertake to poy suppliers on time
and encourage good practice. Paying 95% of invoices within 40 days is also a target under the Code, and the
group s working fowards achieving this goail. renegotiating long-standing agreements with national suppliers where
relevant. For the six months ended 31 March 2021 and 30 September 2020 the group has paid 93% ol invoices within
60 days {6 months ended 31 March 2019: 87%).

As part of our commitment to industry best practice we collaboraled with a specialist provider to develop and
adop! a simple to use cloud based payment processing service. The Webcontroctor system, which is in use across
most of our businesses. provides our subcontractors with an unrivalied level of iransparency as to where each
payment applicotion is in the poyment process. The system also includes controls thot ensure compliance with
payment provision under the 2009 Construction Act and enables increased levels of visibility around paying our
subcontraclors on time,

The group won the award for Best Use of Technology at the Construction News Awards 2019 for its implementation
of the Webcontractor system. The Webcontracior system is now beginning to be used by other contractors.
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STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE 18 MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2020

People engagement

Motivaled and engoged people who embrace the idea of a learning organisation ore integral i the group's
sustainable business goals. The group continues 10 use-an independent employee engagement survey process. This
ollows the group to measure and compare the degree of. employee engagement with a benchmaork of over 17
million responders.

The directors are satisfied that the overall engagement score is ranked as ‘Good’ in comparison with the
benchmark, alihough it has decreased to 3.21 from 3.27 last yeor due 1o the disruption caused by the COVID-19
pandemic. The group is continually striving to jeam and improve our engogement scores. The group has nine
engogement champions who have been trained to use and interpret the survey dota and work with line managers
to dive the development and implementation of action plons.

The group fosters a learing cuiture, encouroging ail employees to take responsibility for therr own deve’opment
and providing a suite of tools to further develop their technical and interpersonal skills to further ther career and to
help the group ach;eve ifs purpose. The People team is constantly stdving to refresh and innovate the leaming tools
and knowiedge available. which has been a particular challenge over the last eighteen months due to the
resinctions on face o tace contoct.

The directors have been greatiy impressed and encouraged by fhe ability of our people and teams to adapt 1o
new ways of workng during the COVID-19 pandemic. More llexible. hybrid working arangements that ba‘ance
workplace capacily. business priorties and personol needs will become the nom. The People team is working with
operating businesses and heads of function o determine how specific roles can best be delivered through hybrid
working and ensuring the necessary support is in place,

The voluniory employee chum rote hos reduced {0 11.0% {31 March 2019: 15.0%). in line with the graup’s target.

The group provides a confidentiol employee ossistance programme thot is avaioble 24/7 1o a2 employees, which
offers independent guidance ond advice on any personol or work-related issues.

Tralning .

The group has continued to foster a jearning culture, despile the challenges creoted by the COVID-19 pondemic,
with ali raining having 1o be provided remotely. Thisincludes motenal developed specificolly to address the safe
working requirements in relation o the pandemic. Across the group 2,760 {yeor ended 31 March 2019; 3,287) formal
froining doys have been delivered 1o employees

In April 2019 the group implemented a new Learning Manogement System (“LMS"}. The LMS supports all employees
to keep frack of their learning history, complionce training requirements and provides access to thousands of online
leaming opportunities. and facilitates the centralised analysis ond reporting of training throughout the organisation.

The STOP Think! Cultural Development programme hos continued to have o significant impoct. In all, 698 peopte
attended the STOPThink! progromme. Our customers and supp’y chain partners are actively engaged in this ond
support the programme by committing their own employees lime 1o ottend the events.

Gender pay gop

Gender Poy Gop reporting provides o meosure of the difference in the average pay of men and women,
Organisational changes implemented duning the 18 month period ended 30 September 2020 have affected which
enlities wihin the group are required to report Gender Pay Gap doto in accordance with Government
requirements. The published hgures are based on data collected at a spec.hed referance date |5 April 2020). The
directors are pleased 10 see that these resuits are moving in the right direction but we are still working to improve
the gap

The median gender pay gap & the difference in pay between the middle value of male and female empioyees
ranked in order of highest salary to lowest salory. The mean gender poy gop shows the difference in average hourly
pay between men and women,

The directors were porticularly pleased to note that the meon gender pay gap resu’t of 19.9% has improved from
20.8% the yeor before, and from 28.9% two years ago. The medion pay gap result has alse improved 10 22.4% from
24.3% the previous year and 29 3% two years ago.
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Financlal performance

Resulls

The loss betore toxation was £14.973,000 {yeor ended 31 March 2019 profit £2,253,000). Atter making provision for
taxation the loss for the financial pedod was £11,887,000 (yeor ended 31 March 2019. profit £1.703.000). The
consolidated income statement for the year is set out on page 18. Clearly, the results have been significantly
impacied by the COVID-19 pondemic, however it is not possible to separate out and quantity all ospects of the
pandemic's finoncial impact. :

Net assels

Total net assets have decreosed to £5.498,000 (31 March 2019; £17.801,000), o decrease of £12,303,000. This
decrease is primarly due to the loss for the financiol period and interim dividends totating £710.000 paid in July 2019
and Februory 2020, prior to the COVIDI19 pandemic impacting the business. The group’s freeho'd property was
revolued during the 18 month pefod ended 30 September 2020, resullting in o £551,000 revaluation gain. An
actuarial loss of £180,000 was recognised in respect of the defined benefil pension scheme, The directors do not
recommend the payment of o final dividend in respect of the financial period.

Net cash and debt

The group's cash balance hos decreosed to £16.419.000 {31 Moarch 2019: £28,438,000). targely due to operating
cosh outflows of £12,984.0000 (year ended 3t March 2019: infiows £463.000). The group's net cash, comprising cash
ot bonk and in hand less bank debt and finance teoase obligations, wos £8.799,000 ot 30 September 2020 {31 March
2019: £27.840.000). During the 18 monih period ended 30 September 2020 the group arranged o £2,025,000
morigage on o lreehold property and drew down £5 211.000 of an £8,000.000 loan foc&ly aranged 1o fund the
development of an investment property. The group also has in place o £5,000.0000 supply chain linonce ond short-
term waorking capital facitity which was utilised for short periods during the financiol penod,

The group continues lo maintan a conservalive fevel of trading cash in order 10 maintain ocdequate werking copitol
to withstand any untforeseen cash challenges.

Defined benefil pension scheme

The group continued ils dehicit reduclion contributions during the 18 month period ended 30 September 2020,
contributing £1.335.000 (yeor ended 31 March 2019: £1,014.000) to the defined benefit pension scheme. The
pension deficit liabitity calculated in accordance with FRS 102 hos decreosed o £845,000 at 30 September 2020 {31
March 2019: £1.755.000). The tnennial actuariol valuation as ot 31 March 2019 wos completed during the period,
resulting in an actuarial delicit of £2,258.000. with Ihe actuatriol value of the plan's assets representing 74% of the
plan’'s actuarial iabtities (1 April 2016: 88%). The boord has agreed o scheduie of contributions aimed ot eliminating
the actuariol deficit by July 2022.

Princtpal risks and uncertainties
The principal rsks and uncertamties facing the group are set oul below.
Leadership and manaogement capability

The success of the group is dependent on ils ability to attract ond retain people with the necessory capability.
charocter, experience and expertise. There is always competition lor talent within the industry. The group offers
competitive remunerotion packaaes ond encouraaes a positive, leaming cuiture to attract and retain suilable
Osborne has continued to develop and sirengthen its senior teams in 2019/20 to ensure they ore lully aligned with
and able to deliver the group's business plon. Significant organisationat changes have been made during the 18
months ended 30 September 2020 and a number of key appaintments mode to sttengthen management
accountobilily in key business streams.

COVID-19

Despite the apparent success of the vaccine roll oul in the UK, the impact of the globol COVID-19 pandemic
continues 1o be felt, in terms of revised working practices, employee and subconiractor absence. and materials
shortages due to logislical issues. During the eorly stages of the pandemic the group moved quickly o establish
safer, sociaily distonced working arrangements 1o enable our site teams to return o work as quickly and safely as
possivle, ond lo facilitale remote working for those individuols abte to do 50. Changes to working practices made
during the first wave of the pandemic have continued to be enforced and stricter meosures have been
implemented where necessary. The graup will continue to monitor the impact of the pondemic and the
effectiveness of mitigating measures as mandatory restictions are eased. and will act swiftly to safeguord our
workforce, customers and other stakehoiders. With stict operoting protocols in place the Board are hopeful that
the Group's businesses will be able to continue 1o operale os neor normal o5 possible.
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STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE 18 MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2020

Principal risks and ynceriainties (continued)
Brexit

Brext uncertainty is a key issue thot all organsations have had to face over the lost few years. Although the UK
formaotly teft the EU in January 2020, the ramifications of this event drectly on the group and on the wider economy
have continued fo be felt. The impact of Brext hos been compounded by the COVID-19 pandemic which has also
orovided o sianificont iolt to the wider economy.

This Is o complex set of circumstances thot continue to change with many unknowns that makes it extremely
difficult to accurately ossess ond mitigote the ossociated nsks. Our nvestigotions prncipally foll into two main risk
elements. our people {availability of skiled trades and supervision] and motesiats (particutarly those sourced and
supplied from the EV).

The group purchases some goods from mainland Europe. and hence is exposed to polential adverse movemenis in
the tong-term Euro exchonge rate and potentic! delivery delays or shortages Movements in exchange rates ond
any fong-term trends ore reviewed regularty to ensure the nsk of losses on foreign curency transactions ore kept to
a minimum. Stock levels held by the group ond suppter resilience are regulory reviewed to miligate against any
potentiol delivery delays.

Leoving the EU hos also impocted on the ovoilability of skiled workers given the relalively large proportion of the
labour force, particularly in the group’s main geographical area of operations. that came trom Europe. The group
mantains regular contact with suppliers and subconiractors 10 ensure supply is avariable in line with project
fimelines.

Market risk

Following the cottapse of Canllion in January 2018 and Interserve entenng administration in March 2019, the fragility
of some of the larger operotars in the induslry continues 10 couse concern, in particulor the impact these maojor
events can have on the induslry's wider supply chain. This remains a significant iisk in the coming year, porticulardy
given the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic and Brexit on the wider economy, and the group continues o assess
its own supptiers’ exposure and vuinerabiity.

Project delivery

Poor operational delivery of projects. whether through late delivery or quoity of workmanship, could incur
additional costs thot erode profit marging and cash. It 6 aiso possibie that customer expernences fail short of group
stondards. potentiolly leading to reduced repeat work or refefrols.

The increasing use of technological innovations such as the Project Information Managementi (PIM) mobile app
enables our employees to capture and log images that evidence specification and workmanship complionce ond
raise observations that require rectification, prior to prejects being honded over to customers.,

The group recognises the tmportance of sirong colloborative working relotionships on the qualily of outcomes. The
group i§ developing o supply chain community that shares Osborne's values and promotes and visibly demonstcates
these values through their behavigurs ot both a comporate and individual level,

As noted above, project delivery hos been significantly impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic, with significant
project de'ays caused by government restrict.ons, revised working practices in accordance with government
regulaiions and industry guidelines and absences due to infection or se'f isolotion,

The group’s govemnance process has format goteways designed to minimise volatiity and moximise the opporunity
o deliver continuous improvement in project delivery. Th’s process hos benefitied from several external audits to
make continued improvements. The group conlinues {0 be certified tor ISO 9001, ISO 1400} and ISO 45003.

The estabished Improvement Opportunities (IO] process ollows ideas to be logged far quicker and easier and from
remote locations. Group-wide 1O pane's are established fo review, action and feedback to those individuals raising
improvement ideos, os we!l os escalaling recommendations for 8oard endorsement and investmenit.

Controctyol claims

At 30 September 2020 the financ:al position of ol contracts has been assessed, wh:ch has included for o number of
contracts an assessment of entii'ement 1o revenue from unagreed vanotions to contracts or contractuol claims,
Where significant recovery from variotions or claims is taken to value the directors and senior management team
ndependently scrutiruse the position recognised to safisfy themselves that the amounts recognised are appropriote
based on the specific circumsiances of the associated contracts. For material claims independent odvice is sought
lo help the directors form this ossessment. The directors are of the view that the amounts they have recognised ol
30 September 2020 are probable of recovery and do nof expect any adverse impact on reported resulls in relation
to thus item.
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STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE 18 MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2020

Principal risks and uncertainties (continued)

Liquidity and finoncing

Following the collapse of Carillion and Interserve, the controcting sector hos suftered from a lack of confidence on
the part of extemal debt and fiquidity providers. The group seeks to maintain a strong cash batance (o miligate the
need for borrowing ond to provide financing options for development opportunities.

The group relies upon bond faclities for traditional construction and infrastructure projects. and has faciiities with six
surelies to provide enough bond copacity for the toreseeable future, No speculofive trading in financial instruments
is camed out.

The group has anincreasing number of project bank accounts, however, these have not had o significant impact
on cash flow. There hos olso not been a significant impact on our cash flow due to paying suppliers earfier os o
result of working fowords an improvement in our payment practices perfanmance.

Scenario plonning is regularly reviewed by directors in relation 1o cosh forecasting. porticulory prior to making
molerial cash investment decisions.

The importance of financiol risk management iemains. The group conlinues to operate a comprehensive frade
contractor vetling process olongside procedures to ensure credit ond other financial checks are coried out on
both customers and frade contractors as approprote, Creds instrance is obtaned where appropriate.

)

On behalf of the beard

W

Andrew Steele
Group Chief Execulive
28 September 2021
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SECTION 172 STATEMENT
FOR THE 18 MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2020

Under section 172 of the Companies Act 2006, the direclors have o duty to promole the success of the group for the
benefit of the members as 0 whole and. in doing so. they should hove regord to (amongst other maotiers) six
specilied oreas that relale, by-and-large, to wider stokeholder interests:

*The likely consequences ot any decision in the long-term:

*The interesis of the group's employees:

*The need to foster business relationships with suppliers, customers and others:

*The impac! of the group's operations on the communily and the environment;

*The need to mointain a reputation for high standards of business conduct; ond

*The need fo act faily between members of the company.

The directors consider. both individually and collectively. that in the decisions taken during the period under review,
they have complied with these requirements. How they hove done so is sef oul in the sections below,

As o boord., the directors understand that the business can only grow and prosper over the long-term if the group
understands and respecls the views and needs of customers, employees. supply choin partners and the
envitonment and communities in which it operates, as well as the shareholders to which they are accountable.

Ltong-term shotegy and vision
The board meets regularly ond is responsible for establishing the group's tong-term strotegy and vision and ensuring
that these ofre communicated and aligned across the business.

The Board apgproves ond regulary reviews progress ogainst the group's fong-term strategic plans and aonnual
budgels. Against o backdrop of significant challenge in the indusiry due to Brexit, the COVID-19 pondemic and the
increasing focus on climate chonge. the group has undergane a period of reflection resulling in 0 renewed purpose
and vision: to provide sustainabie. intelligently designed spaces thot improve people’s lives, delivered using modem
methods of construchon and low carbon design. The group's strategy is to grow the business sustainably, improving
outcomes ond reducing risk through leveraging the development and off-site monufocturing opportunities in its
chosen markets. .

in setting the long-term strategies ond vision for the business and taking decisions during the financiol year, the
board hos regord to the key stakeholder groups and motters outlined below.

Employees

The long-term success of the business is predicated on the commitmeni, skil and knowledge of the workforce. The
board fosters a collaborative, open and learmning culture to ensure that employees ore empowered to deliver the
sustainable services our clients need in occordonce with the group's core values: quality. integrity. openness. caring
and progressive.

Regulor employee engogement s conducied though o number of channels, inciuding surveys, regulor emails and
newsletters, sociol media and instant messaging chonnels, group intranet news and blogs. working groups on
strotegic topics such as diversity and wellbeing, performance reviews and feedback. and face to face meetings.
The board takes employee feedback senously, ensuring that action plons ore developed and implemented o
oddress issues identified through regular employee surveys.

Dunng the period under review. employees have had to cope with the extraordinary demands and stresses of the
COVID-19 pondemic. with site operations curtailed, skict safe-working procfices inlroduced and many statf working
remotely for long periods of time. The board had to toke some dilficull decisions duning the pandemic o ensure the
fong-lerm viability of the group and protect jobs for the (ong-term, including temporary periads of furlough and
salary culs and some redundancies. The board is grotefut for the resilience and adaptability demonstrated by
empioyees in engoging with customers and supply chain pariners 10 estabish safe working practices ond operating
procedures. enabling work on our sites 1o continue. Recent experience has shown thal employees can work
flexiiy. The board recognises that fiexible or hybrid working offers many benefils, for the individual. for the
environmeni and for the business. and is keen 1o work with its employees to ensure working practices bolance
workplace copacity and business priorities with personal needs and circumstances.

Customers

The board recognises thot engagement through listening. undersianding and respanding 10 customers is citical 1o
the long-term success of the business. The directors engoge with customers through regular meetings,
correspondence, site meetings ond digitol and sociol medio channets The feedback lrom customer engagement
helps to inform the igng-term strolegies. budgets and business plans regu’arly reviewed by the board. This includes,
but is not fimited to. the way in which teams communicate and co'laborate w:th customers. quality improvements,

Dunng the pefiod under review the group has focused on the needs of cusiomers in response to the COVID-19
pondemic, in porticytar 10 ensure site operations can be conducted sately and within government ond industry
rules and guidelines, and communicating the impact of the pandemic on key milestanes and deadlines.
Customers have also been kep! up to dote on the impoct of key legisialive changes. such as the domestic reverse
chorging orangements for VAT,
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SECTION 172 STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE 18 MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2020

Supply chain pasiners .

The group recognises thal its success ond reputation are inextricably linked toits relotionships with key supply chain
paoriners. These supply chain partners inctude suppliers of moleriols and components, speciolist subcontractors and
lobour resource providers, The group seeks to develop long-term relationships with supply chain pariners who share
the group’s values.

Engogement with supply chain partners takes many torms across the group. including regular meetings o) project
and management leve), reguior surveys ond feedback, conferences, workshops and frade torums, the provision of
training ond paorticipation in working groups ond shared workspaces. This engagement helps 1o idendify and inform
potential impravements in the group's policies. processes and procedures, methods and style of communication,
ond the tong-term business pians opproved by the board.

The board recognises the significance of cash flow and prompt payment to supply chain partners and agrees
policies, procedures and coniract lerms accordingly. The group has in place o reverse focloning arangement
which enables suppliers 10 occess eaty payments on discounted terms.

Ouring the period under review the board considered and directors aclively engoged with supply chain partners on
COVID-19 sofe operating procedures, the requirements and implications of the reverse charging arangements for
VAT and IR35 reguiations.

Shareholders

As Q privatety owned fomily business with a relalively small group of shareholders, the board has a keeninlerest in
undersionding ultimate shareholders’ views and gbjectives and reflecting those in developing its long-term strategic
plons.

The board promotes an open relotionship with the shareholders. Shareholder engogement is promoted through the
Chairman and includes feedback and analysis communicated through annuol and quarteriy reports,
supplementary cairespondence and regutor and informal meetings.

The vitimate sharehotders are updaled on the group's progress on o quarierly basis. including o summary of the
resulls ond key devetopments in Ihe busness. Ourng the peried under review the shoreholders were kept aware of
the group's progress in developing and delivering on its chosen strotegies to enhance long term value and reduce
nsk. The last 6 months of the reporiing penod and beyond have been dominated by the gréup's response to the
COVID-19 pandemic. Through regular updates the shoreholders hove been kept informed of the impoct of the
pondemic on Ihe gioup's businesses. the mifigating aclions taken by the board and the consequences of those
actions for the shoreholders and other stakeholders.

The inferests of the shareholders and semor monagement ore atigned through a long-term incentive plan which
enables senior exaculives 1o benelit from the long-erm value creotion of the group.

C ities and l nt

The group's core purpose is to provide sustoinable, intelligently designed spaces that improve people’s lives. tach
of the group’s businesses is 1osked with contiibuling 1o betier outcomes ocross every stage of the property iitestyle,
using modern methods of construction and low carbon design. and operating in accordance with our core volues;
quality, integrity, openness, caring ond progressive. the board is committed to building o diverse and inclusive
business, atiracting new taient to the business from o wider range of backgrounds to fosler creativity, innovotion
ond problem solving. :

Ouring the cument yeor the group hos relreshed its Sustainability Strategy, incorporating several new improvement
abjectives and renewing its commitment 1o developing carbon neutral solutions.

Our communities are as importont 10 us as the buildings we leave behind, That's why we create opportunities to
improve local communities, providing o positive social and envronmental impact. Social volue is considered in olt
aspects of our business, fram local recruitment. local supply chain pariners. upgrading communily focilifies.
equipment and material procurements, providing works ptacement and appointing apprenticeships. 1o supporting
alocat cause. Creating posilive outcomes for people and their {ocal area is our key daver and is aligned to our core
vaiues and cullure.

To capiure the huge scope of our socio! and enviranmentaiimpacts we have adaopted Thrve ImpaciUK as our
pariner 1o efficiently measure our performance. Thive enables us to capture data. understand the linancial volue
ond seomtessly demansirate this 10 our stakeholders with live transparent dotao,

The group & committed o supporting clients 1o improve peopte lives through creating opportunities. Our social
volue programmes are developed with our supply chain pariners to deliver positive outcomes thol we can
calculate and understond the finonaiol volue as weli as the lacal personot benelit. Thrive will ensure that our social
volue dota will be captured. enabling us 10 provide assurance around how we cotlect this information and repont
on the impact. Our Social value Steering Group {SVSG) will meet quartery to review outcomes and review
opporunities 1o improve our standards and 1o consider the pillars of social vatue. theirimpact and review targets.

The group oclively encourages its employees to engoge with and contribute to the communtties in which we (ive
and work. tistening to customer and communily cancerns angd octing occardingly. and supporting numerous
choritable and community arganisations through fhe donotion of both time and money.
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SECTION 172 STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE 18 MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2020

Other stakeholders
Other maojor stakeholders include the group’s insurers, bankers, surety providers, advisors. pension trusiees, regulotors
and HMRC.

with all these other stakeholder groups. the directors maintain regular, open and colloboralive dialogue to ensure
that all parties are kepl informed and listened to. Through regulor updates and foce to face meetings, insurers,
banks and surely providers are kept informed of current pedformance, forecasts. objectives. and any other maotters
of relevonce 10 thelr interoction with the group.

The group has maintained regulor dialogue with HMRC during the period under review, including the group's
response to the COVID-19 pandemic through its use of the Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme ond deferral of
employee taxes and VAT poymenls,

The directors meet regulorly with the pension scheme frustees and their advisers, including in response to the
triennial valualion of the defined benefit pension scheme as ot 31 March 2019, which wos completed dunng the
period under review. The directors have ogreed o schedule of contributions aimed at elmincting the actuorial
deficit by July 2022.

Business conduct

The boord embraces and promotes the group's core volues of quality, integiity. openness, caring and progressive in
altits dealings. Guidance on professionat and ethical conduct is set out in the group’s Governance Manual, which
is ovailable to oll employees on the group’s intranel.  Through its embedded leaming culture, the group constantly
strives to reinforce its core values in everything it does, ensufing that the highest standards of business conduct are
met. The group hos a whistieblowing policy o protect employees who wish to report any unethicol, itegal or
inappropriote behaviour, and works with Protect, on independent whistleblowing charity, who provide confidential
advice.

On behalf of the board

WX\/\/«

Andrew Osborne
Chairmon
28 September 2021
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OSBORNE GROUP HOLDINGS LTD

DIRECTORS' REPORT
FOR THE 18 MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2020

The directors present their onnual report and the audited financial statements of the group and company for the 18
month period ended 30 September 2020. .
Dhrectars

The followng directors have, unless otherwise stated. held office since 1 April 2019 and up to the dote of the signing
of the linonciol statements: :

AS C Osbome M J Sirong
AP Steele A Litlley
S Hommond

Golng concern

The group meets its day to day working capital requirements through its own cash reserves and loan facililies,
including a £5 milllon supply chain finance and working capital lacility which it draws on as required. At 30
September 2020 the group had a positive cash balance of £16.419,000 {31 March 2019; £28.438.000} and debt of
£7.620.000 {31 March 2019: £598.000), comprising bank foans and finance leases.

The directors have reviewed the forecost tuture performance of the group and cosh flow forecasts prepored by
management covering the period to 30 September 2022, including the impact of the disposal of the infrastruciure
business on future lrading performance and cash flows. The projections have been sensitised 1o toke into account
recsonably possible changes in key undertying assumptions including future workload ond margins. Having made
oppropriote enquiies, the directors ore sohshed thot the group has odequote resources 10 continue operoting for
the foreseeable future. For this reason the drectors have continued 10 adopl 1he going concern basis when
preporing the tinoncial stotements.

financial risk management

The group's activities expose it 1o a vanely of finangiol risks, The directors consider thot credit dsk and tiquidity risk ore
the moin financial nsks. Credit risk is monoged by performing relevan) checks on any potential new customers and
supptliers os well s penodic reviews of exsting key customers ond supptiers. Liquidity risk manogement to enable the
group to meet its obligotions as they fall due is camed out through Ihe preparotion and moniloring of cash fliow
torecosls, doily cash reporting and prompt chasing of debts as they foll due.

Dividends

jwo interim dividends lotalling £710,000 {year ended 31 March 2019: two interim dividends totalling £698,000) were
opproved ond poid in July 2019 an February 2020, piior 1o the COVID-19 pandemic impocting the business. The
direclors do not recommend the payment of a hnal dividend in respect of the 18 month period ended 30
September 2020 (year ended 31 March 2019: £nil},

Fulure developments

The direciors consider that the breadth of achvities undertoken by the group ond the quality of relationships with its
customers teaves it well placed to deal with any struclural changes that may occur in the market.

Ihe group hos undergone o period of reflection against o backdrop of significant changes in our markels caused by
Brexil, the COVID- 19 pondemic and increasing ¢oncerns obout climate change. Struciural changes within the
group and the slriengthening of empowered management teams have enabled the group 1o focus oniits core
purpose of providing sustainable, intelligently designed spaces thal improve people’s lives, using modern methods
of consiryction and tow corbon design.

Charitable contiibutions

During the 18 month period ended 30 September 2020 the group mode charntable donations of £40,000 {year
ended 3! March 2019: £78.000) os set out below. The group hos commitied to donate 1% of profit to charties each
year. with pricrity given to requests from local charities. charities thal cater for the care of children, the disabled,
disadvantaged of underprivieged. and construction related charities.

18 months ended Year ended

30 September 2020 31 March 2019

£000 £000

Educohional chorities 5 9
Locol communily charilies 10 n
Demeizo Children’s Hospice - 25
Nationo! weltare charilies 25 33
40 78

No contributions were made 10 ony pofitical porly {year ended 31 March 2019: £nil).
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€, 0, 3 9 "
Pioy mnvoiv

The directors view the engagement and motivation of everyone in the group os key to the success of the business
and its customers and suppliers. To achieve this, constant and consistent communicotion is critical ot alt levels. The
directiors monitor that monagers hotd regutar, open. two way discussions with our people 10 enhonce engagement,
involvement and performance Our people ore encouraged to personally engoge with seeking and padicipating in
improvement opportunities. however smaoll or lorge.

Each business areo holds employee roadshows and holds cascade brefings 0s appropriote, These locaolised octions
are supported by o wider range of group commurucation and engagement actvities including inductions. e-
bulletins ond a newly launched Leaming Monagement System. Leadership and development training is an
important part of our business planning. helping our people to deliver te their full potential in line with the group's
growlh and profitability targets. An annual engagement survey is canied out 1Q help monitor employee
engagement as well as idenlify priorly areos for action.

Our annual Chairman's Awords provide an opportunity 1o celebrote and share success. The scheme is open to
nominations across the group and our supply chain, and is exiremely well supported, attracting over 200
nomingtions. We Qlso recognise emptoyees who have achieved 10, 20, 30 ond 40 years' service to the company
at our annuat Long Service Awards evening

Disabled persons

The group gives avery consideration to applicants with disabitities where the requirements of the role can be
adequately performed with reasonable adjustments to support the employee once in post. With regard to existing
employees that have declared a disability and those who have become disabled during the period. the group hos
continued to examine reasonable adjustments 1o support continuing empioyment. The group understands that
career opportunities are important to all our employees and provides training, career development and promotion
identical to that of on employee who does not sufter from a disability, This practice is reflected within our Equality.
Diversity and Inclusion Strotegy and supports our continuing quest 10 shape a diverse workforce.

Directors’ indemnities

The compony purchosed and continues o maintain drectors” and officers’ kabilily insurance cover in tespect of
itself and its direclors

independent auditors

The auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, have mdicated ther withingness 1o continue in office. Pursuant to Section
487 of the Companies Act 2006, the auditors will be deemed to be re-appoinied ond PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
will therefore continue in office..

Events after the reporting pertod

On 16 February 2021, the group sold the entire ssued share copita) of Osborne Developments (Nomwich) Limited to a
reloted party, Rosewood Development Holdings Ltd. for £1. All amounts owed by Osbormne Developments (Norwich}
Limited to the company were repaid on thot dote.

On 18 May 2021, the group sold the entire issued share capila) of Osbome Developments (Colchester) Limited to
Rosewood Development Hoidings Lid for £2.129.000. Al amounts owed by Osborme Developments (Colchester)
Limited to the compony were repad on thot date.

On 18 August 2021, and in accordance with its core strolegy, the group announced the disposal of its infrastructure
busmess. The sale completed on 16 September 2021. The saie will faciitate the alignment of our remaining
deveiopment, construction, property services and monufactunng businesses. enabling them to work together with o
greater clarity of purpose {0 grow os o sustainable and profitable business.
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Stotement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the financial s!ate'mem

The directors are responsible for preparing the annuol report and the financial statements in accordance with
opplicable law and regulation.

Compony low requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial period. Under that iaw the
directors have prepared the group and company financial stalements in accordance with United Kingdem
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Stondards, comprising FRS 102.“The
Financiol Reporting Standord appli¢able in the UK ond Repubtic of Ireland”. and appticable low). Under compony
taw the directors must no! approve the financial statements unless they are sofisfied that they give o trye and loir
view of the state of aftairs of the group and company and of the protit or loss of the group and company for that
perod. in preparing the financial statements, the directors are required to:

sselect suitable accounting policies and then opply them consistently;

«stote whether applicoble United Kingdom Accounting Standards. comprising FRS 102, have been fotiowed, subject
fo any moterial departures disclosed and explained in the financiol statements: C

*make judgements and accounting estimoles that are reasonoble and prudent; and

prepare the financial stalements on the going concem basis unless it is inoppropriate to presume that the
company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for sateguarding the assels of the group and company ond hence for taking
recsonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other imegularities.

The directors are also responsible for keeping adequate accounting records thot ore sufficient to show and explain
the company's transaclions and disclose wilh reasonable accurocy of any time the financial position of the gravp
and company and enable them 10 ensure that thie inoncial stotements comply with the Companies Act 2006.

Dlsclosute of information to auditors
in the cose of each director in office al the dale the direclors’ report s approved:

«50 tar as the direclor is aware, lhere is.no refevant audit infarmation of which the group ond company's ouditors
sthey hove taken all the steps that they gught to have taken os o difector in order to make themselves aware of
any retevant audil information and to esdlablish thot the group and company's auditors are aware of that
infgrmation,

On behalf of the board

JoH ]

Stuart Hommond
Diector
28 September 202)

15



OSBORNE GROUP HOLDINGS LTD

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
OSBORNE GROUP HOLDINGS LTD

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

in our opinion. Osborne Group Holdings Lid's group financial stotements and company finonciol stolements {the
"tinancial stotements®}:

* give a true and fair view of the state of the group and company's offarrs as of 30 September 2020 and of the
group’s loss and the group’s cosh ftows for the penod from ) Apnl 2019 1o 30 September 2020:

* have been properly prepared in accordance with United K'ngdom Generally Accepied Accounting Practice
{United Kingdom Accounting Standards, compiising FRS 102 “The Fnanciol Reporting Stondarg opplicable in the UK
and Republic of irefond”, and applicable law); and

* hove been prepared in accordonce with the requrements of the Compaonies Act 2006.

We have audited the financiol statements, inciuded within the report and financial statements (the “onnual
report"}, which compiise: the consolidoted ond compaony staternents of inanciaj position as ot 30 September 2020,
the consolidoted income statement and the consolidated statement of comprehersive income, the consoldated
statement of cosh fiows. and the conso¥dated and company statement of changes in equity for the period then
ended: and the notes to the financio} statements, which include o description of the significant accounting poticies.

8osis for opinion

We conducted our oudit in accordance with international Standards on Auditing (UK) ("ISAs {UK}") ond applicable
law. Our responsibilities under ISAs {UK) are further described in the auddors' responsibilities for the audit of the
financo! statements sect:on of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient ond
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

independence

We remained independent of the group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our cudit
of the financia? statements in the UK, which includes the FRC’s Ethicol Stondard, ond we hove fultilied ow other
ethicol responsibilities in accordance with these requirements,

Conclusions relating to going concern

We hove nothing to report n respect of the tollowing matlers in relalion to which §SAs (UK] require us to report 10 you
where:

* the directors’ vse of the going concern bosis of accounting in the preparotion of the financial statements is not
opprophiote; or

+ the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified materiol uncerainties thot moy cost
significant doubt obout the group’s and company's obilily to continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting for o period of ot least twelve months trom the date when the financiol statements are outhorised for
issue.

However. because not all future events or conditions can be predicted. this stalement is not 0 guarantee as {o the
group’s and company's abiily 10 continue as a going concem.

Reporting on other information

The ofher information comprises all of the information in the annuol report other thon the finonciol statements and
our auditors’ report thereon, The drectors are responsible tor the other information. Our opinion on the financial
statements does not cover ihe olher information ond. occordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to
the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report. any form of assurance thereon.

in conneclion with our oudit of the financial statements, our responsibilily is 10 read the other information and, in
doing s0. consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financia! statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise oppears 10 be materiofly missialed. if we identity an apparent
motedal inconsistency of material misstatement. we are required to perform procedures to conclude whether there
is o material misstatement of the finoncial statements or a materiol misstotement of the other infarmation. If. based
on the work we have performed, we conclude thol there is o moleriol misstolemen) of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report based on these responsibilities.

With respect 10 Ihe stralegic report and directors’ repoft, we olso considered whether the disclosures required by
the UK Companies Act 2006 have been included.

Bosed on the fesponsibililies described obove ond our work undertaken in the course of the oudit, I5As (UK) require
us also to report certain opinions and matters as described below.

Strategic report and directors’ report

In our opinion, based on the work underfaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the strategic report
and direciors’ report for the period ended 30 September 2020 is cansistent with the financial statements and has
been prepared in accordonce with applicable legol requiraments.

In light of the knowledge ond understanding of the group and company and thelr environment obtained in the
course of the oudit, we did not identify ony materiol misstatements in the strategic report and directors’ report.
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OSBORNE GROUP HOLDINGS LTD

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
OSBORNE GROUP HOLDINGS LTD (CONTINUED)

Responsibliities for the financlol statements and the audit

Responsibilities of the directers for the fmancial statements

As explained more fully in the statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the financiaistatements. the
directors are responsible for the preparation ot the financiat statements in accordonce with the apptcable
framework ond for being sotisfied that they give a true ond fair view. The directors are also responsible {or such
internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financiol statements thot ore free from
malerial misstatement. whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the finoncial stotements, the direciors are responsible for assessing the group's and the company's
obility to continue as a going concern, disclosing os oppkcable, matters related to going concermn and using the
going concern bosis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidote the group or the company or o
cease operotions, or hove no reaiistic alternative byt to do so.

Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the financio! statements

Our objectives are to obtain reoscnoble ossurance about whether the financial statementis as a who'e ore free
from materno) misstotement. whether due 1o froud or eror, and toissue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, bul is not o guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs (UK} will atwoys detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstalements can arise kom fraud or error
ond are considered material if. individually or in the aggregote. they could reasonably be expected o influence
the economic decistons of users token on the bosis of these financial statements.

A further gescnption of our responsibifities for Ihe oudit of the tinancial statements is located on the FRC's website at:
www Irc.org.uk/auditorsrespansibilities. Thus description forms part of cur auditors’ report.

Use of this reporst

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a body in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 14 of the Companies Act 2006 ond for no other purpose We do not, in giving
these opinions, accepd or ossume responsibility for ony other purpose of 10 any other person to whom this report &
shown or into whose honds it moy come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in wiiting.

Other requlred reporting

Componles Act 2006 excepftion reporting

under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to reporl to you if. in our opinion:

« we hove not received all the information ond explanations we require for our audit; or

« adequate accounting records have no! been kept by the compaony. or returns adequote for our audit hove not
been received from branches nol visited by us. or

« cerlain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by low are not made: or

« the company financiol statements are not in agreement with the accounling records and returns.

we hove no exceptions o report arising from this responsibility.

Ko

Andrew Latham {Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behall of PricewalerhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants ond Stotutory Auditors
Gatwick

28 September 2021
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OSBORNE GROUP HOLDINGS LTD

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE 18 MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2020

18 months ended Year ended
30 September 2020 31 march 2019
Note £000 ° " £000
furnover 4 §59.972 392,141
Cost of soles 1536,786) (359.268)
Gross profit 23,186 32,873
Administrative expenses

Exceptional items H - {657)
Other admunistcative expenses {44.6285) {32.872)
Totol adminssiralive expenses 144,425) {33.529)
Other operating income & 1.722 -
Operating loss (19.717) (656)
Fair value movements 13 217 .
Shore ol profil of joint ventures 15(b) 2.827 3.079
(Loss) / profit betore Interest and taxation {14,719) 2,423
Inlerest receivabte ond similar ncome 7 41 2
Interest poyable aond simZar expenses 8 {295) (172}
(Loss) / profit before taxation ? {14,973} 2,253
Tax on (loss} / profil 10 3.086 {550)
(Loss) / profil for the financlal period/year (11.887) 1.703

The noles on pages 25 to 44 are anintegral port of these linanciol statements.



OSBORNE GROUP HOLDINGS LTD

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE 18 MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2020

18 months ended Yeor ended

30 September 2020 3) Morch 2019

Note £000 £000

{Loss} / profil for the tinanciol period/year . : {11.887) 1.703
Revaluation of freehold lond and buildings 551 84

Actuarnal losses on pension scheme 22 {18D) (670)
Tox on components of other comprehensive income / {expense) 10 {77) 1
Total comprehensive (expense) / income tor the period/year {11,593} 1118

The notes on pages 25 to 44 are on integral part of these tinancial slatements.
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OSBORNE GROUP HOLDINGS LTD

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2020
30 September 2020 31 March 2019
Note £000 £000
Fixed assels
Investment property 13 12,600 .
Tangible assels 4 6,497 5721
Investment in joint veniures 15(b} 306 3.079
19,403 8.800
Current assets
Stocks 14 4411 475
Deblors {including £5.665,000 (31 March 2019:
£4,584,000] amounis {alling due after one year] v 75.064 100.285
Cash at bonk and in nond ) 16.419 28.438
95.894 129.198
Creditors: amounts talling due within one year 18 (88.421) {107.963}
Net current assels 7.473 21,235
Total assets less cumen liabilities 26.876 30.035
Crediiors: amounts falling due olter more than one 19 115.382) (7.908)
yeor
Provisions for liabilities 20 {5.151} {2.571
Net assets excluding pension liabllity 6.343 19.556
Pension liability 22 {845) (1.755)
Net assets 5.498 17.80)
Capital and reserves
Called up share capilal 23 15 15
Revaluation reserve 2.640 2.089
Retained earnings 19.878 32,732
Reverse acquisition reserve 1.153 1.153
Merger rgserve {18.190) (18.190)
Equily attributable to owners of the parent 5.496 17.799
Non-controlling interests 2 2
Total equity 5.498° 17.801

The noles on pages 25 o 44 are anintegral part of these financial siatemens.
The financial statements on pages 18 to 44 were approved by the board of directors on 28 Seplember 2021 and were signed on its

behall by:
Andrew Osborne Sfvart Hammond
Chairman Dlrector

‘Cempany number 11056197 (England and Wales] -
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OSBORNE GROUP HOLDINGS LTD

COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2020
30 September 2020 31 March 2019
Note . £000 £000
Fixed assefs
invesiment in subsidiary undenakings 18{a) 8.644 8.644
8.644 8.644
Curnrent assets
Deblors 17 - 159
Coth at bank and in hond 66 346
66 505
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 18 {18) (10)
Net cuirent assefs 48 495
Total assets less cument ltabilities 6.692 "9.139
Credilors: amounts falling dve after more than 19 4.660) 14.363)
one year .
Net assets 4.032 4.778
R T TR— R ———
Capital and reserves
Called up share capilal 23 1S 18
Relained eainings 4017 4,761
Total equily 4.032 4.776
YT TN S AR

the ¢compaony's loss for the 18 month period ended 30 Seplember 2020 was £34.000 [yeor ended 31 March 2019: profit £1.020.000) ond
the company's loto! comprehensive espense for the 18 month period ended 30 Seplember 2020 wos £34,000 {yeor ended 3) Morch

2019 income £1,020.000).

The notes on pages 25 1o 44 ore aninlegrol por of these financiol stotements,

The finonciol statements an poges 18 10 44 were approved by the board of diectoss on 28 Seplember 2021 ond were signed on ifs

behall by:

K\/\/‘

Andrew Osborne
Choirman

Compony number 11056197 (Englond and Wales}

2

J

Styort Homwond
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OSBORNE GROUP HOLDINGS LTD

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE 18 MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2020

Equity
Reverse attributable to Non-
Caolled up Revoluation Retained acquisiion Merger owners of the controlling Total
share capital reserve  eormnings reserve reserve pareny interests equily
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Balance at 1 April 2018 15 2,025 32,396 1,153 {18.190) 17.379 - V2.37%
Profit for the inontia) year - - 1,703 ~ - 1.703 - 1703
Other comprehensive income /
{expense) for the yaar - 84 (669} - N 1585} - 1589
Total comprehensive income for
the year - 84 1.034 - . 1.118 . 1.118
Bssue of shares in sybsidianes . B . - - . 2 2
Oividends pad - - (698} - . (698 “ (698)
Total transactions with owners - ‘ {498) - {698) 2 (696)
Bolance at 31 March 2019 15 2089 32732 1,155 {18.190} 17.799 2 172.801
toss for Ihe financial period - . . £11.887) . . (11.887) - (11.887)
Other comprehensive income /
texpense| fof ihe perod - st (257} . - 24 . 24
Total comprehensive Income / )
(expense) for the period . S5t ‘:” . 111,593) - [11,593)
Dwvidends paid . . {710} , . {710} - 4710}
Total fransactions with owners . - (710) - (710} . (710)
Balance at 30 September 2020 IS 2.640 19,878 1,183 {18,150) 5,496 2 5.498

The notes on pages 25 lo 44 are onintegroi part of these financial statemenils.
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OSBORNE GROUP HOLDINGS LTD

COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE 18 MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2020

Called up share Retained Total
capital earnings equity
£000 £000 £000

8alance at 1 Aprl 2018 ' 15 4,439 4454
Profit for the finonciol year - 1,020 1.020
Tola) comprehensive income tor the year - 1.020 1.020
Oividends paid - {698) 1698)
Total transactions with owners - {698) {698)
8alance at 31 March 2019 15 4,761 4776
Lots ler Ilte tinancial penod - (341 134}
Yolol comprehensi for the perlod - {34) (34)
Dividends poid « {710} {710)
Total transactions with owners - {710) {710)
8alance at 30 September 2020 15 4017 4,032

The noles on pages 25 to 44 are an integral pait of these financial statements.
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OSBORNE GROUP HOLDINGS LTD

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE 18 MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2020

{Loss) / profit before taxation

Adjustments for:

Interest receivable ond similar income
Interest payable and similor expenses
Depreciation of longible assets

Loss on disposol of tangible assels
Gain on revaluation of investimenli properties
Impairmen! of development land
Share of profit of joint ventures
Share-baved payment expense
Defined benefit pension costs
Increase/{decrease) in provisions
{Increase) / decrease in siocks
Decrease / (increase) in debtors
{Decrease} /increase in creditors

Cash flow from operaling activities

Interes! paid
Corporation taxes refunded/(paid)
Defined benetit pension scheme contributions

Net cash (used in) / ¢ ted from operating activities

Cash flows from Investing activitles

Puichase ol tangible assets

Tenont conliibution to office fil-oul

Purchase and constructlion of investment properly
Interes! received

Dividends received from joint ventures

Loans made lo relaled party

Repayment of loans from related party

Ne! cash vsed In investing aclivities

Cash tiows from financing activities

Oividends paid lo owners of parent

Pioceeds fromissue of shares in subsidiary
Repayment of abligalions under finance leases
Repayment of revolving credit {ocilily
Proceeds lrom bank loans

Proceeds from working cogilal focility
Repaymenls of working capital kacility

Net cash generated from / (used In) financing activities

Net decreoase in cash and cash equlvalents

Cash and cash equivalents of the beginning of the period / year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period / year

18 months ended
30 September 2020

18 months ended

30 September 2020

£000 £000

(14,973}
4n
295
$.353
1
{2171)
2.286
{2.827)
736
245
2.580
6.222)
27,200
[20.855})

2.580

{12.393)
(286)
1.030
(1.335)

(591}

{12,984}
{1.578)
(9.276)
41
5.400
{2.000}
2,000

{5.213)
{710)
(220)
7.108
9.192
{9.192)

6.178

{12.019)

28.438

16,419

The notes on pages 25 to 44 are onintegral part of these linancial statements.
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Year ended
31 March 2019

£000

(2)
172
868

s

{3.079)
486
898
{362}
740
(22.540)

23.074

[é1)
{1.228)
{1.304)

1663)
"2

{38}
135

(698)

N4
{2,000)

Year ended
31 March 2019

£000

2.253

260
2,513

{2.693)
(180)

(452}

(2.837)
(3.469)
31,907
28.438



OSBORNE GROUP HOLDINGS LTD

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 18 MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2020

22
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Statutory Information

Osborne Group Holdings Lid i a private company limited by shares. incorporaled in the United Kingdom. and is domiciled
in Englond and Wales, registrotion number 11056197, The company does not trade but it is the ultimoale parenl and holding
company of the Geolfrey Osborne Limiled group, the Osborne Developments Holdings Lid group and Innovare Systems
Umited. The registered otfice is fonleyn House, 47-49 London Road. Reigale, Surrey, RH2 9PY.

Statement of complilance

These finoncial stalements are prepared in complionce with United Kingdom Accounting Standards. inctuding Financial
Reporting Standard 102, The Financial Reporling Standard opplicable in Ihe United Kingdom and the Repubfic of heland’
{'FRS 102’} and the Companies Act 2006.

Accounting policies

Accounting convention

The company changed its accounting reterence date from 31 Maich to 30 September, and consequently these financial
slalements have been prepared for the eighteen month period ended 30 September 2020. The comparalive financia!
statements are for the year ended 31 March 2019.

These financiol stalements are prepared on the going concern basis, under the histosical cost convention (os moditied for
the revatuation of freehold pioperties) and in accordance with the Compaonies Act 2006 and FRS 102. The principal
accounling poficies, which have been applied consistently throughout the financial period and the preceding financial

- year unless olherwise staled, ate sel out below.

The linancial statementis are prepared in pounds sterfing which is the funclional cuency of the group ond rounded 1o lhe
nearest £000.

Basis of consclidailon

The consolidated income statement, consoidauled stotemenl of comprehensive income. consolidated slatement of
financial position. consolidaled statement ol changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows include the
tinancial statements of the helding @ompany and ils subsiiary underlakings made up lo 30 September 2020. Unless
otherwise slated the acquisition method of occounting has been applied. Under this method subsidiaries are included from
the date of ocquisition. Disposals are accounted for up lo the date control posses lo a third parly. All subsidiaries have
applied the same accounting poticies and have the sume tinancial year end as the company. Inhha-gioup sales, profils
and balances are etnminated fully on consclidation.

As permilted by Section 408, Companies Act 2006, the separate income slatement of the company is not presented as part
of these linonciat stalements..

Golng concern

The group meefs its day lo day working copital requirements throughils own cash reserves and toan tacifties, including o £5
milion supply chain linance and working capitat facility which it draws on os required. At 30 Seplember 2020 the group had
a posilive cash balance of £16,419,000 (31 March 2019: £28.438.000) and debl of £7.620,000 {31 March 2019: £598.000).
comprising bank loans ond linance leases.

The group hos prepared o cash flow forecast covering the period to 30 September 2022, which includes the disposal of the
intrastructure business on 10 September 2021, and, affer moking enquiies and laking accoun! of reasonably possible
chaonges in frading performance. the directors have a reosonable expectation that the group has adequale resources to
continue in operalional existence or the toreseeable future. Therefore the group continues 10 adopl the going concem
basis in preparing iis linancial siatements.

Exemptions for qualifylng entitles under FRS 102

The linancial siatements of the company are included in these consolidated financial statements ol Osbome Group
Holdings Lid. which are publicly avoiiable. Consequently. the company has laken advantage of the tollowing disclosuie
exemptions as permilled by FRS 102 inits individual financial statemenis:

i) lrom prepating o stalement of cash flows and related noles and disclosures {Seclion 7);

ii) from presenling cerlain financial instrument disclosures (Section 1} ond Section 12): and

iii} ftom disclosing the compensalion for key management personnel {Section 33).

Joint veniures .

The group's share of prolils less losses of jomt venlures s included in the consolidoted income stalement and ifs inlerest in
their net assets or liabililies is included in mvestments in the consofidated statement of tinancial position.
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OSBORNE GROUP HOLDINGS LTD

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE 18 MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2020

2 A fing policies (confinued)

26 Yurnover
For contracting acliviies, luinover sepiesents the eslimated sales value of work done in the tinoncial yeor in occordance
with the long-term contract provisions of FRS 102 {Section 23] based on percentage of canlract completion at the period
end. for capital aclivities, which represent aclivilies whete the group lakes on the role ot developer, luinover is recognised
when services hove been provided and contractual obligofions met. For the sale of development properties, tuinover is
recognised upon legal completion. Properly leased to customers under operaling teases thot contain on incentive {arent
fiee period] have been accounted lor on a siraight line basis over the term of Ihe lease. For all olher activities, tutnover
represents amounts received or receivable trom external customers for goods and services supplied. Tumover is nel of vatue
added tax and trade discounts, bul includes retentions held by clients.

2.7 Long term contiacts ]
Long term contracts include the profit atfiibutable o thot part of the work performed at the end of the accounling period.
No profit is recognised uniil the oulcome of the contiact can be determined wilh reasonable certainty. Losses are
recognised in full as they are foreseen.
Amounts recoverable on long term contracts. which are included in debtors. are stated al the net soles volue of the work
done aller provision for fulure losses, less amounis received and receivable as progress payments on account. Excess
progress poyments are included in credilors os payments received on accounl.

28 Government granis
Granls of o tevenue naoture are recognised in “olher opetating income™ withun profit or ioss in the some period as the
reloted expenditure. This includes the Government Coronaviius Job Retfention Scheme {'Futlough'). The group has not
drectly benetited Irom any other lorms of goveinment assistance.

29 Bawowing costs
General and specilic borrowing cosls diregtly allibutable to the acquisition, constiuction or production of qualifying assels.
which ore assels that necessarily take o subslantial period of time to ge! ready for ther intended use or sale. are added to
the cost ot those assels, untl such time os the assels are substantially ready for Iheir intended use or sale. Al other
borrowing costs are recognised in profit of toss in the period in which Ihey ore incunred.

2.10 Investmen! properly
invesiment properlies are inilially meosured ot cost ond subsequently measured at fair value, where o relioble measuie of
lair value is avoRable without undue cost or elfort. Changes in tait value are recognised in prolil or loss.

2.11 TYangible assets
freehold land and buildings ate included in the statement of finoncial position at their open maiket value at the end of the
accounling period on the bosis ¢f an annvol valsation. All other fixed assels are held ot historic cost less accumulaled
depreciation, Cost includes the original purchase price of the asset and the cosls ottibulable lo bringing the asset to its
working condition for its intended use. The useful economiic tife of assets are reassessed periodically and an annual
valualion was performed for all propetties at 30 September 2020,
Deprecioton is provided at rates calculated to write olf the cost or vafuolon less estimaled residual volue of each asset
ove! ils expetted vseiul economic lile, as 1o ows:

freehold land and buidings Over 40 yeoss in equalinsioiments for freeho'd otlice buildings. No depreciation is
provided on lreehold tond
Leasehold improvements Over the unexpired term of the lease on a straighl tine basis of shorter il the uselul
expected lite s tess
Fixtures ond equipment 10% to 25% steaight tine
2.12 tleasing . .

Where the group entess inlo a lease which entails taking substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an assel, the
lease is ireoted as o “imance lease™. The ossel 1s recorded in the statement of financial posilion on commencement of the
lease as properly, plant and equipment at fair volue of the leased assef o1, it fower, the present value of the minimum lease
payments ¢aiculated using the interest rate implicit in the teose. The ossel is deprecioted over ifs estimated uselul life or the
term of the leose, whizhever s shorter. Fulure instalments under suzh leases. net of tinance charges. are included within
creditors. Renfals poyable are apportioned between the tinance element, which is choiged to the income slatement. and
the copital element which reduces the obligation for fulure insla’'ments,
Costs, ingtuding ren! free periods, in respeci of operoling leases are ¢charged to the consolidated income statement on a
skaight fine basks over the fuli lease teim.

213 Investments
Investments in subsidiary underlakings ore recognised of cost less accumutated impairment tosses. Investmenls in subsidiary
undertakings ore tested for impairment where an indicalion of impairment exisis ot the reporting date.
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OSBORNE GROUP HOLDINGS LTD

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE 18 MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2020

2 A " licles (confinued)

2.14 Stocks
Stack Is stated al the lower of ¢os) and eslimoled selling price less cosls lo completion and cosis to sell. Costincludes oll
cosls incurred to bring stock ilems Io their present location and condifion. Stock value is calculated using the weighted
average method.
At the end of each reporting periad inventories are assessed for lmpovmenf it an item of inventory is impaoired, the identified
invenlory is reduced lo iis selling price fess costs 1o complete and sell and on impalrment charge is recognised in the
consolidaled income stalement. Where a reversal of the impairment is recognised the impairment chorge is reversed, up 1o
the original impairment loss, and & recognised as a credil in the consolidoted Income statlament.

2.15 Provision tor liabilities
Provisions are recognised when the group has a present obligafion as a resull of a past event, it is probable tha! a hansfer
of economic benelits will be required to seltle the obligation, and o teliable eslimole can be made of the amount of the
obligafion.
Provision is made in accordange with FRS 102 (Seclion 21) for coniract remedial costs. and other known ligbilities which exist
of the year end dote.

2.16 Penslons
The group operates o defined coniribution and a defined benefit pension schame as set out in note 22,
The assels of the defined contiibufion pension scheme are held separolely 10 the assels of the group in an independently
administered lund. The pension cos! chaige disclosed in note 22 represents contiutions payable by the group to the fund.
The defined benelit pension scheme wos closed to fulure agcruals wilh effect trom 1 June 2010. The assels ol the scheme
are held separalely lo those of the compony i un independenlly administeted fund.
Defined benefit pension scheme liabiliies are measured using the defined accrued benefifs funding method and are
discounted ot the cuirenl tate of refurn on a high quulily corporale bond of equivalent teims and currency 10 the liabilily.
The increase in the piesent value of the liabithes of the group defined benelit pension scheme expecled lo arse from
benefits accrued In the tinonclol year is charged 1o the consofidated income stolemen). The expected return on the
scheme's assels and the increose during the linancic! year in the present value of the scheme's liabiiities arising fram the
passage of lime are included in administrative expenses. Actuoriol gains and losses are recognised in the consofidoled
statement of camprehensive income.

Pension scheme delicils o suipiuses. lo the extent ihal they aie recoveroble, are tecognised in ull and presented on the
tace of the slotement of linancial position.

2.17 Current and deferred toxation
The lax expense for the period comprises cuirent and doterred tox. Tax is recognised in prolit or toss, except thal a charge
allribuiable lo anitem of income of expense recognised s olher comprehensive income or 1o an itemrecognised directly
in equily ks also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equily respectively.
The current income tox charge is calcukated on the basis of tax cates and tows thol hove been enacted or substantively
enactled by ihe reporting dote.
Deferred lox is recognised in respect of ali timing ditferences that hove originated but not reversed at Ihe end of the
occounting year, where fransactions of events that reswit in an obligation to pay mote tax in the future of a tight 1o poy less
tox in lhe future have occeurred af the date of the stotement of financial position.
A defened tax asset & recognised as recoverable and therelore recognised only when. on Ihe basis of all avoitable
evidence, it can be regorded os more likely than not that there will be suslainable taxable profits agains! which to recover
carried torward lax losses and from which the fulure reversat of uriderlying timing diflerences con be deducted.

Detferred taxis measured al the tax rales that are expected lo opply in the periods in which the timing differences are
expected lo reverse. based on lox rates and laws thal have been enacled or substanlively enacted by the end of the
accounfing year.

2.18 Financial instruments
The group has chosen to adopt Sections §1 and 12 of FRS 102 in respect ol finoncial instruments.
Basic financial ossels, including rode and other deblors and amounts owed by group undertakings and related parties. are
nitially iecognised at Ihe lransaction ptice and subsequenlly caried at amorstised cost using the efteclive interest melhod.
financiol assels are derecognised when (a] Ihe contraclual rights 1o the cash flows from the assel expire or are seftind. or
(b) substantially all the sisks and rewards of ihe ownership of the assel are kansferred 10 another party.

Basic financial fiobitifies, sncluding frode and other creditors, bank loans and overdrafls and amounts owed lo group
undeilakings. are inificlly secognised al the hansaction gyice and subsequently carried at omortised cost using ihe effeclive
interest method. Finoncial abiliies are derecognised when the iability is extinguished. Ihat is when the conlractuai
obfigation Is discharged. cancelied or expires.

Financial assets ond Gobililies are offset and the net amaunts presented in the finoncial statements when there is a legaly
enforceable right to set ofl the recognised amaunts and there i aninlenlion 1o sellle on o nel basls or 1o reclise the asset
and setlle the liobility simultaneously.
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2.19

2.20

2.2}

Share-based payments

A number of subsidiory companies within the group have issued growlh shares 10 cerlain employees within the wider group.
which are cansidered to be cash-settied share-based payments.

A tiability equol to the porlion of Ihe services received is tecagnised al and re-measured based on the cument folr vave
delermingd ot each stalement of financial posifion date for these giowth shares, with any changes tn fair value recognised
fhrough prolit or toss.

The expense in relation to the growth shares gianted to employees of ihe wider group is recognsed by each subsidiary
company as a capilal contribution. and presenled os an increase in the company's investment in those subsidiaries, os the
liabilily sits wilh the holders of the A ordinary shares.

Dividends

Dividends and other disiributions to Ihe group’s shareholders are recognised as o tiabilily in the period in which they are
approved by the shareholders.

Exceptional items

Exceplionatitems are disclosed separalely where it Is necessary lo do so to provide turther understanding of the finonclat
performance of the group. They are items that are maleriot eilher becouse of theis size of theis noture, or thal aie non-
tecuriing and oulside the scope of the ordinory activilies ol the business.

Key sourcaes of eslimation uncertalnty and crifical accounting judgements

In Ihe application of the group’s cccounting policies. which are described in notes 2 1-2.2), the diregtors are required lo
moke judgements (olher than Ihose involving estimations) that have a signilican! impact on Ihe amounis recognised and lo
make estimales and assumptions about the carrying omounts of assels and tiabiilies that are nol readily apparent from
olher sources. The eslimates ond associoted assumplions are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considerad 10 be relevont. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimales and underlying assumptions are reviewed on on ongoing basis. Revistons fo acgounting estimates are
1ecognised in the period in which the eslimaote is revised it the revision alfects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision alfecls both current and tuture pedods,

Critical accounting jvdgements

Share-based paymenls

A number of subsidiary companies within the group have issued growth shares to cerlain employees of the wider group. The
growth shares entitie the holders 1o o share of the future growth in vaiue of the company. as determined by an agreed
colculation, up lo the cessotion of their emplayment wilhin the group. or in an exit evenl. The holders also hold a put oplion
over 50% of the growth shares. which can be sold back fo Ihe hokder of the company's A ordinary shares ol an agreed
ptice alier Ihe cessation ot a qualilying period of service.

The ditectors have made judgemenis around the likelihood ot each of the potential exit events and hove determined tha!
these growih shares should be classified os a cash-settied share-based poymend. The group has therelota recognised o
liability of £1,222,000 (31 March 2019: £486,000) of the statemeni of linanclat position date, being ihe fair valve of these
growth shares ot this dote.

Exceptionolitems

Exceptional ilems that are material eilhet because of their size of their nature. or thot aie non-recuring ond ouiside the
scope of lhe ordinary activities of the business which the directors believe should be presenled seporately on the lace of
ihe consolidoted income stalement 1o provide turther understanding of the financial performance of the gioup.
Determining whelher an item is exceptionat of not requires judgement. In accordonce with Financial Reporting Council
guidonce. the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic hus not been disclosed as an exceplional item.

No excepfional items were charged to the consofidaled income stalemenl during the year [year ended 31 March 2019;
one exceplionol item lolalling £657.000). An explanation of the nature of these items is delailed in note §.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Revenue recognilion [see note 4)

The group's revenue recognition policies require forecosts to be made of the oulcomes of tong-term construclion services
ond support services conlracts on a confroct by conlract basis. These forecosts are based on anticipaled revenue and
cos!s o complefe and involve eslimates on changes in the scope of work, delect fiabiiifies ond changes in costs. Estimates
ol the conlract posilion and the profit tecognised to dale are reviewed monthly.

8
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FOR THE 18 MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2020 )

3 Key sousces of estimation uncertainty and critical ting jud: is (continued)

o IVEY 1

Key sovrces of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Amounts recoverable on conlracts {see nole 17)

As sel oul in nole 17 the gioup has o significant balance of £45,805.000, os al 30 September 2020, in retation to amounts due
{rom cusiomers which rellects management's best eslimate of amounts due lo the group in relation to various contracts
which had yet lo be invoiced as at thal date. In ine with the guidance in FRS 102 these amounis, along with the trade
deblor bolonce of £23,881.000 delailed in note 17, represent the amounts that management befieve best reflect amounts
fo which the group is enlitied to and cre ptobable of rsecovery, based on the state ol progress of the various associated
contragis. os at Ihe balance sheel date. Theie is however a degree of judgement. that varies in complexity and
magnitude by contract, as to what is an appropiiate leve! of income and receivable lo recognise is at any point in time on
o contracl.

In this contex! where the group makes clains tor contract variations. disputes and programme delays, esfimotes are made
on recoverabiiity on o conliact by ¢onliagl basis, based on independent legal and other professional advice as
appropriate and historical experence. Af the lime of approving these financiol statements. the group is involved in
number of contraclual negotiations where the hino) oulcome could eilher matedially Improve or detract fiom the position
recognised in these tinancial statements, ‘ihe ditectors have made lheir best estimate of the expected amounts
regoverable in prepaiing these linancial stotemertls. The actual resutt moy however difter ftom fhis estimate.

Investment properties (see note 13)

The fair value of investnient property ot 30 September 2020 has been determined by lhe directors based on an extemal
votualion of the completed property camed out in accordarne e with RICS Vatuation Professional Standards. The directors
made adijustments to the external valualion lo reflec! the staye of complefion of the properly at 30 September 2020 and
constiuction ¢costs to complele the property. : :

Carrying vatue of devetopment land {see nole 16}

The canying vaolue of lund oggjuited by the company for duvelopment pusposes. which is held in stock, hos been assessed
by the direcloss on the bass ol its estimated development value as a completed propetty compared fo cosis incunred to
date and estimated costs to complele and sell the propetty.

Defined benelil pension scheme {see note 22}

The gioup has obligalions 1o pay pension benelils 10 detencd members of the scheme. The cosi of these benefils and the
piesent value of the obligation depend on a nuniber of tactors, including: mortality, luture pension increoses, investment
retuins, inllation and the discount sole The dneclors oblain independent advice from a qualified actuary and the relevant
assumptions are delailed in note 22. The nel delicil on Ihe group's defined benefit scheme is £845.000 (31 Morch 2019:
£1.755.000) aller recognising octuarial losses ol £180.000 {year ended 31 March 2019: £670.000) duting the year.

Share-based payments {see note 24)

A number of subsidiary companies within the group have issued growth shares to certain emptoyees ol the wider group. The
tair value of these share-based payments has been deleirmined based on the expecied liobilily that will arise, with the key
inputs being the fulure forecast profitabilily and growth.
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4 Tumnover

The folof furnover of the group for the financial year has been wholly undeitakenin Ihe United Kingdom.

The analysis by ¢lass of business of the group's tuinover is set out below:

18 months ended Year ended

30 September 2020 31 March 2019

£000 £000
Conlracting aclivities 559.654 390.871
Sate of development land - 900
Rentatincome 318 370
559.972 392.141

§ Exceptional items 18 months ended Year ended

30 September 2020 31 March 2019

£000 £000

Past service costs on defined benefil penslon scheme . 657

The impact ol the iuting in Lloyds 8anking Group Pension Trusiees timited vs. Lioyds Bank pic and olhers will likely lead 1o higher pensions
for some of the members who were in the group's defined benefit pension scheme between 1990 and 1997. The est. mated impact of
this ruling was an increase of 2.8% of the total vaxie of scheme liabilties. According’y a charge ol £657.000 was recognised os at 31
March 2019 for the estimated cosls arising from this judgement lor Ihe group’'s defined benulit pension scheme This amount was
included within the consolidated income statement os o past service cosl. and the direclars considered this wos suificienlly matetial fo

wairant disclosure as a nonweguring. exceplionatitem

6 Other operating income 18 months ended Yeas ended
30 September 2020 31 Mmarch 2019
£000 €000

Coronovirys Job Retention Scheme grant 1,722 -
7 Interest recelvable and similar i 18 months ended Year ended
30 Sentember 2020 31 March 2019
£000 £000

interest on bank deposils 8 2
QOlhet interest receivable . kx] “

41 z
8 interest payable and similar expenses 18 months ended Year ended
30 September 2020 31 March 2019
£000 £000

Bank loans and overdiafis 175 &5
Other loons . 69
Finance leose inlerest 25 22
Other interest 180 16

380 172

Interest capitafised (85} -

295 172

30
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FOR THE 18 MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2020

(Loss) / profit before taxatfion

(Loss) / profil before taxation is stated aller charging/icrediling):
Loss on sale of langible assels

Defined benefit pension cosis

Depreciation of langible assets » owned

Depreciation of tangible assets - held under finance lease
Operotling lease rentals:

- Plant and machinery

- Land and buildings

Cost of stock recognised as an expense

(a

~—

(b)

Services provided by lhe group's audilors:

+Fees payable for audil work tor compony and consolidated
linancial siatemenis

-Fees payable for audil work for subsiciarsies

-Fees payacble for other services - lox complisnce

« Fees payable for other services - lox advisory

« Fees payable for olher services » olher

Tax on (loss) / profit

Included in profit ot loss

Cumrent tax

UK ¢orparation tax on (loss }/ prolit tor lhe period / year
Adjustments in respect ol prior periods

Total cunent tox

Deterred tax

Originalion and revetssal of timing dilferences
Impact of chonge in lax rale

Adjustments in tespect! of prior years

Telol deferred tox

Totai tax [¢redit} / chaige for the period / year

Included in other hensive | / (exp

P

~—

Deferred tax
Qilgination and reversal of timing dilferences
Impact of change in lax raie

Total tax chorge / (credit} included in other comprehensive income

3N

18 months ended Year ended
30 Sentember 2020 31 March 2019
£000 €000

1 s

245 898

1,236 790

1AV 78

15.271 12,291

2177 1.366

11.196 9.430

18 10

288 155

44 66

é 80

. 17
18 months ended Year ended
30 Seatember 2020 31 March 2019
£000 £000

(494} 219

{494} 219

(2.707) 343

4 49
" {61)

2.592) 331

{3.086) 550
18 months ended Yew ended
30 Ssptember 2020 31 March 2019
£000 £000
70 {31)

7 30
7 n
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE 18 MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2020

10 Tax on (loss) / protit {continved)
(¢) Reconciilation of tax (credit) / charge

The lax assessed for the 18 month period ended 30 Seplember 2020 is lower [year ended 31 March 2019: higher) than the standard rote
of corporaltion tax in The UK of 19% {year ended 31 March 2019: 19%).

18 months ended Year ended
30 Sentember 2020 31 March 2019
Factors affecting the tax (credil) / charge for the year £000 £000
{Loss} / Prolit betore loxation (14,973) 2,253
{Loss) / Protit before taxation mulliptied by slandard rote of UK
corporation tax of 19% (year ended 3) March 2019: 19%) (2.843) 428
Eftects of:
Non deductible expenses 132 28
Income nol subject tolax 1537) {5835)
Change in 1ox rales ' 4 59
Tax on share of parinesship prolits ) 456 522
Pension cosl relief in excess of net pension cost charge 177)
Adjustmenils in respect of prior years {383) 158
Other tox adjusiments 87 17
Tax {credi) / charge for the period / year {3.086) 550

Factors affecting future tax charges

Chaonges lo the UK corporation tax rates were subslantively enacled as part of the Finance Act 2016. These changesinciuded o
reduction in Ihe moin UK corporation tax rate 1o 17% from | April 2020, and this rate was used in lhe deferred lox colculations as al 31
March 2019. In Ihe Budgel of 11 March 2020, the Chancelior of he Exchequer announced thal the planned rote reduction trom 19% to
17% would no longer be laking elfect. The changes announced in the 1) March 2020 budget were substantively enacted os at 30
September 2020 and therefore all opening deferred tax balances have been remeasured ot 19% with on adjusiment recognised in the
total tax credil {or the 18 monih period ended 30 September 2020,

In the budgel of 3 March 2021, the Chancelior of the Exchequer announced thal the moin rate of UK coiporation tax rate would
increase lo 25% with eflect from | Apnl 2023. The changes proposed in the 3 Moarch 2021 budgel were substanlively enacted on 24
May 2021 and have not been reflected in these financial statements.

11 Deferred tax

Group Penslon scheme Other deferred tox Total deterred
deterred tax asset (labliity) / asset  tax (llabllity) /
asset
£000 £000 £600
8alance at | Apri 2019 298 279) 19
income statement delerred lax ¢redil . 2.592 2592
Other comprehensive income / (expense] delerred tax charge 138) 61 {77)
Balance at 30 Seplember 2020 160 2.374 2,534

Delened fox is fully provided ot 19% (31 March 2019: 17%) ana’ysed aver the following fiming dilferences:

30 September 2020 31 March 2019

£000 £000
Capital allowances {342) {132}
Unulitised tox losses 3.398 126
Revaluation of properlies {914} {355}
Shate-based poyments 232 82
Pension scheme 160 298
Tolal liming differences 2.534 19

For the group. in accordance with FRS 102 {Seclion 29). the deferred lax assets have been tecognised as it is regaided as mare likely
Ihan nof that they will be recovered.

The net deferred lax asset expected lo reverse in Ihe year ended 30 Seplember 2021 is £53,200. This primarily relates to the reversal of
liming dilferences on tangible assets and copital allowances through depreciotion, and on the pension scheme deticil.

Company
The company had no detered tax,

»
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12 Dividends

Group
First inleriim dividend paid 29 July 2019 (year ended 31 March 2019: 7 August 2018)

Second intetim dividend poid 7 Febiuary 2020 (year ended 3| March 2019: 7 February 2019)

Company
First interim dividend paid 29 July 2019 (yeor ended 31 March 2019: 7 Augus) 2018}

Second interim dividend paid 7 Febyruary 2020 (year ended 31 March 2819: 7 February 2019)

18 months ended Year ended
30 Seotember 2020 31 March 2019
£000 £000

496 462

214 236

710 698
18 months ended Year ended
30 Sentember 2020 31 March 2019
£000 £000

496 462

214 236

710 698

Two interim dividends totaling £710.000 (year ended 31 Maich 2019: two interim dividends lotalling £698.000} weie approved and paid
in July 2019 and Febiuary 2020. Ihe ditectors do nol recommend the payment ol a final dividend in respect of the 18 month period

ended 30 September 2020 (year ended 31 March 2019: £ni).

13 tnvestment property
Group

Falr value

Al | Aprid 2019
Additions

Fair value gains/{losses)

At 30 September 2020

£000

10,429
22

12,600

Invesiment property comprises reehold land ond buildings. The company purchased o site in Colchesler dusing the financial period
and commenced comtryction on the sile to provide student accommodation. The Directors hove valued the property al 30
Seplember 2020 of market vatue. based on an external valuation carried out on the completed properly in accordance with the RICS
Appraisol ond Valuotion Manual and adjusted for the stage of complelion and construclion costs to complete lhe building.

33
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14 Tangible assels

(o) Group
freshold tand and Leasehold Hxtures and
. bulldings improvements equipment Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
Cost or valuation
At 1 April 2019 2.550 1,187 7.719 11,456
Addilions . - 1.578 1.578
Revaluation 500 . - 500
Osposals . . 11,482} {1.482)
Al 30 September 2020 3.050 1,187 7815 12,052
Aceumulated depreclation
Al | Aprl 2019 - 835 4900 5735
Charge for the linancial petiod 5l 157 1.145 1,353
Revaiualion {sn - . 51
Disposals . - 18,482} 41,482)
At 30 September 2020 . 992 4,563 5.855
Net book value
Al 30 September 2020 3.050 195 3.252 6.497
At 31 March 2019 2.550 352 2.819 5721
The nel book value ol tixtures and equipment includes £535.000 {31 March 2019: £652,000) in respact of assets held under fmange
leases.
Analysis of land and buildings ot cost and revalued amount;
30 Seplember2020 31 March 2019
£000 £000
Al cosl 892 892
Increase due to valuation 2,158 1.658
3.050 2550

(b} An external valuafion of ireehold land and buildings wos caried oul by onindependent tiim of Chartergd Surveyors, in ac¢ordance
wilh the RICS Appraisal and Valualion manual {the “exlerno} valuafion’}. The external valuotion related to the group's London office
(wicklield House) and wos conducted tor secured lending purposes as al 21 November 2019. The directors undeitook a review of the
voluation of Ihe properly as at 30 Seplember 2020. including o ¢onsideration of market prices for simiar properties in the locol area and
the condition of the building ilself, The directors concluded that the exlernal vaiuation was represeniafive of the value of the propery
at the stotement of financial posi.on date. In accordance with the group’s accounting poficy a full valuation by an extesnol vaserss

performed al leasl every 5 years.
(¢} !tland ond buidings hod not been revalued, they would have beeninciuded al the following amounts:

30 September 2020  3) March 2019
£000 £000

Cost 892 892
Accumulated depreciation (482) {431)
Nel book valve - 410 461

Company
The compony has no tangible assels.



OSBORNE GROUP HOLDINGS LTD

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE 18 MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2020

5

Investments

(o) Investment in subsidlary undertakings

)

-

Company £000
Cost and carrying amount
At 1 Aprit 2019 and 30 Seplembers 2020 8.644

On 22 August 2019 the company incorporated Fiexihomes Ltd.

On 8 October 2019 the group purchased 5.4% of the Ordinary B shares of Innovare Systems limited. 5.6% ol the Ordinary B shares of
Osbome Developments Holdings Liniited, 4.6% of the Ordinary B shases of Osborne Construction Limiled, 6.0% of the Oidinary 8 shares of
Osborne Infrostruclure Limited, 7.2% of the Ordinary B shares of Osborne Property Sewvices Limited, and 7.2% of the Ordinory B shares of
Osbome Homes Limited. for a combined consideration of £125, being the par vatue and original subscription price of the shares. On |
Juty 2020 the group puichased a fuither 33.5% of ihe Ordinary B shares of Osborne Developments Holdings Limited for £123, being the
par value and ofginal subscription pnce of the shares.

The directors believe that the canying value of the investments i supported by their underlying net assels and future cashilows.

At 30 September 2020 Ihe company has the lollowing subsidiary undertakings. all of which are registered and operate in England:

Name Principal activity Shares held
Geotfirey Osborne Limited Building ond civil engineeiing contractorand 100% ordinary
property maintenonce
GCHO Holdings Limited Holding company 100% ordinary
Innovatre Systems Limiled 8uilding subcontractor and manutacturer of  100% A ordinary
struciuralinsulated building panels 5.4% B ordinary
Osborne Developments Holdings Lid Holding company 100% A ordinary
39.1% 8 ordinary
Flexhomes Ltd Devetopmeni of building projects 100% ordinary
The company also indireclly owned the lollowing group uiidertakings:
Name Principal activity Shares held
Geolirey Osborne {Pension Truslees) tintited Pension huslee 100% ordinary
Osbormne Properly Services timiled Propeity maintenonce 100% A ordinary:
7.2% B ordinary
Fishbourne No2 Limited Investmen! company 100% ordinary
Geolliey Osborne Properly Services Limited Dormont 100% ordinary
Osbotne Homes Limited Construction of residential propesty 100% A ordinary;
7.2% 8 ordinary
Osbome Communities Limited Dormant 100% ordinary
Osborine Comptiance Limited Dormant 100% ordinary
Osborne Infrostructure Limited Civil engineenng contractor 100% A otdinary
6.0% B ordinory
Osborne Consliuction Limited Building confractor 100% A ordinary
6.6% B ordinary
t S Monulacturing Limited Dormant 100% ordinary
Geoflrey Osborne Developments [Soulh) Limited Propeity davetopment 100% osdinary
GO Developments {Witham} Limited Properly lessor 100% ordinary
GO Developmenits (Solent) Limited Properly developmen) 100% ordinary
Osbome Developments (Colchester} Uimited Property development 100% oidinory
Osborne Developments (Norwich} Limited Property davelopment 100% ordinary
The registered addiess of alt undertokings nolecl above is Fenieyn House, 47:49 London Road, Reigate. Suirey. RH2 9PY.
Investment in joint ventures
Group 30 September 2020 31 March 2019
£000 €000
Al beginning of petiod / yaar 3,079 -
Dividends received 1S5.400}) -
Share of profit 2.827 3.079
Al end of period / year 306 3.079

a5
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15

(b) 1

14

17

Investments (continved)

st t in joint t {confinved)

The group has an intesest in the following joinl venture, which is registered and operates in Engtand:

Name Prineipal activity Interest held %
Howard Osborne LLP Property developer 50

The registered addiess of Howard Osborne LLP is 93 Regent Streel, Cambridge, Cambridgeshire, C82 JAW. The joint venture financiol
year end is 30 Seplember, which was n¢l €o-terminous wilh that ot the group for prior periods. The resylls are included in the group on
an accruals basis.

Company

The company has no direct interest in jint venlures.

Stocks ' Group
30 September 2020 31 March 2019
£000 £000
Raw maleriols and consumables 41} 475
Development land 4,000 -
4,41) 475

The difterence between the book value and replacement cost of slocks is not considered to be significant,

Corhpany
The company has no stocks.
Debtors
Group Company
30 September 2020 31 march 2019 30 September 2020 31 March 2019
£000 £000 £000
Amounls recovergble on iong term contracts 45,805 65.471 -« -
Trode debtors 23.881 27,389 - .
Amounls owed by group underiakings - B - 157
Amounts owed by related compaonies - 576 - -
Oelened lax asset 2,514 19 - -
Other debloss &4 674 . -
Comporalion tox - 536 -
Other taxation and social securily ) - 3.409 - 2
Prepoymenls and accrued income 2,780 2,211 . . s
75,064 100,285 . 159

inchuded within group rade debtors s £nd (31 March 2019: £238.000) due lrom Winchesler Student No.| LLP and Winchester Student No.2
LLP and included within group amounts recoverable on long term controcts is £nil (31 March 2019: £3.000) due from Winchester Student
No.1 LLP and Winchester Student No.2 LLP. afising from construction services provided by the group on normol commercial terms. These
are entities in which o relaled parly of the group previously had a 50% interest. The amounis ore unsecured and do not bear interest.

. Amounts fa'ling due afler more than one yeor and included in the debtors above are:

Group Company
30 September 2020 31 March 2019 30 September 2020  3) March 2019
£000 £000 £000 £000
Trade debtors 3,184 4.508 . -
Deflened lox asset 2.481 76 - -
5,665 4.584 = .
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18 Creditors : amounts falling due within one year

Payments received on occount
trade ¢reditors

Other taxotion and sogial security
Ofher cieditors

Finance {ease obligations
Acéruatls and delerred incone

Group Company
30 September 2020 31 March 20\9_" 30 September 2020 31 March 2019
£000 - £000 £000 £000
7.601 6,171 . o
24,271 28336 - -
1.696 1.868 . -
432 541 . .
153 146 E .
54,268 70,901 18 10
88.42) 107,963 18 0

Inctuded within group trade creditoss 1s £nil (31 Maich 2019: £657.000) due to supplers under reverse facloring anangements with the
group’s supply chain finance provider, Under s facifily supplicts can etect o access o discounted easly payment from the credit
poriner, tather thon being paid on hoit agreed payment tems,

tf the option s token by a supplier, ihe group's fiability 15 assigned to be due to the credit partner rather than the supptier and the vatue
of the tiabifity remains unchanged. As such Ihese balances conlifwie to be clossilied as irade crediloss and not borrowings, because in
fhe opinion of the direclors the contiactual teims of these auangements do nol differ 1o those under the originol contract,

The group's supply chain finance provider also provides the group wilh a shorl term working capital taclity. tThe group can draw down
on (his facility in order to poy cetlain suppliers on their agreed credit lerms, with the group then repaying Ihe credil provider within 30
days. The balance oulstonding at 30 September 2020 wos £nit (31 March 2019: ni). '

The lolal tacility avaitable is £5,000.000 {31 Maich 2019: £5.000.000). which covers boih the reveise facloring arrangements and the short
lerm working capital tacity. The maximum amount drown down under the iacllities during the 18 monith period ended 30 Seplember
2020 wos £2.688.000 [year ended 31 Moich 2019: £657.000). and the amount cutstanding ot 30 September 2020 was £nil (31 March 2019:
£657.000). The facifity is unsecured and a non-utitisation charge of 2% is payable on any amounls not vliised on the facifity. for amounts
utilised under the reverse factoring anangemenits, inletest is choiged ot eilner 0.6% or 0.75% per annum. depending on the amounts
ulilised, and for amounis utifised under the worsking copital facilily, interest is charged ot 0.75% per 30 days.

19 Creditors: amounts falling due after more thah one year

Tiade creditors

Amounis owed fo group undertakings
Cosh-seliled share-bosed payment
Bank loans

Finance lease obfigations

Maturity of debi
Dve belween one ond tive years
Ove after more thon five yeors

Amoun!s owed lo group undertakings

Group Company
30 September 2020 31 March 2019 30 September 2020 31 March 2019
£000 £000 £000 £000
6.693 6.970 . . R
- - 4,660 4.363¢
1,222 486 - -
7,242 - . -
225 452 - .
15.382 7.908 4,660 4,363
15.382 7,908 - -
- - . 4,640 4,363

On 31 January 2018 loan notes were issued to GCHO Holdings Limited on the putchase ol Geoffrey Osborne Urﬁ‘.ted and lo Geofllrey
Osbomne Limited on the puichase of Itnavare Sysfens Limited, The 10 year foan notes are unsecured and accrue interest on the
principal amounts of £4,180.000 and £1 respectively at LIBOR plus 3% per onnum, payable on redemption,
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19 Creditors: amounis falling due after more than one year (continved)
8ank loons
During the 18 monih period ended 30 September 2020 the group entered info the tollowing borrowing arrangements:

. The group oblained a morigage on ils London office {Wicklield House) for £2,025,000. The mortgoge bears interest al LIBOR +4%. is
repayable In December 2024 ond is secwred by a lixed chaige over the fieehold property. The balance oulstanding at 30 September
2020. nel of £16,000 unamorlised arrangement fees ond accrued interesl, wos £2,009.000 (3) March 2019: £nil).

i. The group entered into on £8.000,000 facility with Investec Bank plc to fund the construclion of the invesiment property. Interest is

charged ol LIBOR +4.5% on any amounts drawn down and the facility is repayable in full on 3 December 2022, The tacility is secured by
a fixed chorge over the invesimen! properly and by a floating charge over the assels of a subsidiory company. Osboine Developments
{Colchester) Limited. £5,211.000 was drawn down under {his facifity during the period (year ended 31 March 2019: £nil}. The oulistanding
balance at 30 September 2020 of £5,233,000 (31 March 2019: £nif) is shown nel of £63.000 {31 Morch 2019: £nil} of unamortised
arangement lees and inclusive of accrued interes! of £85.000 {31 March 2019; £ni).

Finance lease obligations
Obligations under linance leoses are secured by the related ossels ond beas finance charges al animplicil rate of inferest of 3.2% per
onnum {31 March 2019: 3.2%). The lotal tuture minimum lease poyments are payable as foliows:

30 September 2020 31 March 2019

£000 £000
Due within one yeas 163 163
Due between one ond five years : 230 474
Total gross poyments 393 637
Less: fulure finance charges {15) (39}
Carrying value of obligation 378 598

finonce lease payments represent rentals payable by the group lor cerlainitems of fixiures and equipment used in the group's
manutactuiing operations. Leases include purchase oplions ot the end of the lease period. ond no restrictions are placed on the use of
the assets. The averoge lease termis 2.5 years (31 March 2019: 3.9 years). All leases are on a fixed repayment basis ond no
arrangements have been enlered into for contingeni rentol payments.

20 Provisions lor llabllities
Remedtal cost

Provision lor
provision contract losses Total
Grovp £000 £000 £000
Al 1 April 2019 2.571 - 2.571
Addilions charged to the consolidated income stalement 543 2.346 2.889
Amounts vlilised {309) - {309}
Al 30 September 2020 2,805 2.346 5.15%

The remedial cosl provisian relates o ¢ osts expecled to be incurred on maoking good delects on finished conlracts. The provision is
calcvtated on an individual contract basis aller considesing @ number of tactors including the method of construction, location and use
ol a building. A remedial cost provision is expected lo be ulifised wilhin lwo years ol the contract complelion date.

The provision for losses on conlracts relales lo future cosis lo be incurred on construction contracts in excess of amounis recoverable on
those contracls. The provision is expecled to crystallise wilhin two years.

21 Financial Instruments

The carrying amount of the group's financial instruments waos as foflows: 30 September 2020 31 March 2019
£000 £000

Financiol assefs:

Debt inslruments meosured ot amortised cost 24,141 28.877

financial liabitities:

Meosured ot omortised cost 93.284 106.706

Measured ot fair vatue 1,222 486

Financial asset debl insliuments measured at amortised cost consisis of rade debtors. other debioats. amounts owed by retated
companies ond accrued income. Financial iabifilies measured al amortised cost consists of bank loans and overdrafis, trade creditars,
other creditors and occrued expenses. Financial liabilities measured ot fair value comprises the liabllity on cash-settied shore-bosed
payments. There ate no complex tinanciatinsiruments .
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22 Pension costs
The gtoub cperates defined conlribution pension plans and a lunded defined benefit plan. The assets of the plans are held separalely
from those of the group In independently administered funds. The cosl of defined contiibulion pension ptan contributions is charged
ogoinst operoling profit for the financiol year. The defined benefil pension cost is recognised in the consolidated income statement.

18 months ended Year ended

Definod contribution scheme - group 30 Seotember 2020 31 March 2019
£000 £000

Contributions p‘oyoble by the group lor the financiat year 8.111 5.476

Conbiibutions include £317.000 {year ended 31 March 2019: £208.000} paid to Herlordshire Counly Council Pension Fund inrespect of 16
employees {year ended 31 March 2019: 17 employees) and £198,000 {year ended 31 March 2019: £211,000) poid to Berkshire County
Council Pension Fund in respect of 17 employees [year ended 31 Masch 2019: 31 employees) thal belong to their previous employers’
defined benefit pension plans. Contiibutions also include £399.000 {year ended 3) March 2019: £391.000} paid to Herlfordshire County
Counci Pensicn Fund in respect of addilional conliibulions agains) the scheme’s deficil. As the aclvariol and investmen risk is
subsiantially barne by the former employess the accounting does not meet the criteria for freatment os a defined benefit pension
arrangement.

Defined benefit plan

A number ol employees and former employees ate defened members of a funded defined benelit pension plan, which provides
henetits based on final pensionable salary. Al 30 Sepicinter 2020 there were 34 {31 Morch 2019: 37) deleired members and 99 (31
March 2019: 98) persioner members. Ihe pensioncr members are 1ully insured with annuilies purchased tfrom reputable pension
providers. Pension plon ussels are held in a separate hustee administered fund 1o meet the long lerm pension liabitilies. The plan was
closed lo new membets in February 2002 ond closad 1o futute pension accruals with effect tom 1 June 2010.

Conliibutions for the period of £1,335.000 (ycur ended 31 March 2019: £1,304,000} are calculofed by aon independent ocluary on the
basis of triennial valuations. This inclucded a one olt contribulion in relation to an enhanced transter value exercise undertaken within the
scheme during the prior year of £170.000. The inost recent ull actuarial valuation was os at 31 March 2019 ond used the defined
acciued benelils funding method. Ths melhod of valualion is parficulary suilable for schemes thol have been closed 1o new enlrants
and have no active members. Ihe actuaiial voluation showed a deficit of £2,258.000 ol 31 March 2019. On 19 February 2018 the
employer and trustees put in place o tegul agreement tar Osborne Group Holdings Lid to become a guaranior tor the full liobilies ol
the plan, in the event thot the employer could not meet its obigalions. As part of this agreement, the employer ogreed {0 accelerota
the recoveting plon conliibulions from 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2020.

The market value of the plan's insured assels in the [ull actuarial valuolion as at 31 March 2019 wos £6,595.000. The actuarial vahje of the
plan's assels represented 74% of the acluarial value of the plan’s iabiities ot that dale The principal assumplions atfecting the
vaivalion, which are based on the nominai giit yield curve, were that the yield on assets and the pre.celzemenl discount rale are n ling
with each other at a valuation of 3.85% per onnum, ond post retirement discount rate is 1.55% per annum.

Anindependent acluary has underiaken a review as al 30 September 2020 for the purposes of FRS 102, Se¢lion 28 Employee Benefits,
The volue of Ihe liabililies hove been calcutoled with reference lo the tiiennial actuarial valuation at 31 Match 2019, making allewance
for member movements and octuaiia! gains and losses arising since thal date . Valuation assumptions under FRS 102, Seclion 28
Employee Benefils are not necessarly appropriate for the purposes of a long lerm tunding valvation. The independent actuarial review
of the defined benetit plon at 30 September 2020 can be summarised os follows:

The principal assumptions used in the calculation of {he volualion ol the plan assels and the preseni value of the defined benetit
obligation include:

30 September 2020 31 March 2019

% %

Rote of increose in pensions in payment 290 3.10

Rate of increase in pensiors in deferment 2.00 2.30

Dicount rate 1.70 2.30

Intlation assumption {RP) 3.00 3.30

inflation assumplion {CP) 2.00 2.30

Commutation of pensions to lump sums 80.00 70.00
The assumed life expeclalions on relilement age 65 are:

Reliring lodoy Reliing in 20 years

30 September 2020 31 March 2019 30 September 2020 31 March 2019

Years Years Years Years

Males 223 220 23.6 234

Femates 240 239 25.5 254
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22 Penslon caosts (confinued)
The falr valve of the plan assets is made up as follows:

" Equities
Corporate bonds
Gills
Other assels

Tolal tair valye of plan ossets

30 September 2020 31 March 2019
£000 £000

2,305 1,959

1.245 1,296

1.833 1.607

2,091 1,988

7.474 6,850

None of the tair values ol the assets shown above include any direcl invesiments in the employer's own linancial inslruments ot any

properly occupied by, or olher ossets used by, the emplayer,

Reconciliation of scheme assets and llabilities

At 1 April 2019

Expenses

Interest income/(expense)

Employer contiibutions

Benefils paid

Remeasurement {losses)/gains:

- Actuatial losses

« Return on plon assets excluding interest income

Al 30 September 2020

The return on plan assets was:

Interest income
Return on plan assets less inteiest incarme

Actual return on plan assels

din the lidated |

Defined benefit costs gnl

Expenses

Net interest cost
Losses on seltiemenis
Past service costs

Detined benelit costs recognised in the income statement

Deflned benefit costs racognised in the consolidated siatement of comptehensive income

Return on plan assels lexdqding amounts included in net interest cost)

Experience losses

Changes in assumplions underlying the present value of plon liabililies

Tolal actuaiiol foss

Assets Llabllities Total
£000 £000 £000
6.850 {8.605) {1.755)
. 204§ {204)
222 {263} {41)
1335 - 1.335
(4.384) 1.384 .
- {631} {631)
4351 - 451
7.474 {8.319} (845)
18 months ended Year ended
30 September 2020 31 March 2019
£000 €000
@2 194
451 124
T a1 2
stat 1]
18 months ended Year endea
30 September 2020 3t Morch 2019
£000 £000
K4 58
a1 3
- 150
. 857
245 898
18 months ended Year ended
30 September 2020 31 March 2019
£000 £000
451 77
(58] (386)
(573) (381]
{180) (670)
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23

24

25

26

Called up share capltal
Group and company 30 September 2020 31 March 2019
£000 £000
Allotted and fully pald
1.126.405 ({31 March 2019: 1,126.405) New A shares of £0.01 1 11
416,616 (31 March 2019: 416.616) C shares of £0.01 4 4
15 15

The New A shares each carry the right 1o one vote al general meetings of the company but no right to lixed income.

the C shares eoch carry the right to receive dividends {subject to the approval of the majorily of the holders of the New A shares). but
no right to either vote al general meetings of the company of receive any capital or assets of the company on winding up.

On 18 November 2020 the 416.616 C shares of £0.01 eoch were consolidated into 208,308 C shares of £0.02 each.

Share-based payments

Cash-seltied share-based payments

During the year ended 31 March 2019 the group implemented a long-term incentive plon for certain employees of the wider group.
and vaiious subsidialy companies issued a tolal of 209.561 B ordinary shares ol £0.01 each {'the growth shares’} to Ihese employees.
During the 18 monith peiiod ended 30 Seplember 2020, 24.866 ot the giowlh shares were acquired by the group. At 30 September
184.695 growih shares were held by pailicipating cmployees {31 Maich 2019: 209.561).

The growlh shares entitle the hokders 1o a shate ol the luture growth in volue of ihe company. as determined by an ogreed
catculalion, up to Ihe cessation of Iheir employment within the group, or in an exil evenl. The holdeis also hold a pul option over 50% of
the growlh shares, which can be sold back 1o the holder of the compony’s A ordinary shares at on agreed price after lhe cessation of
a auglifvina oeriod of service.

The fair value ol the grow!h shases is determined based on the estimated amounts that the holders would be entitled to in the futute in
the event of an exit evenl. a shaie buyback or theis cessation of employmen!, adijusted lor the risk free rate and expected volatility.
The expecled lile used in the model hos been detesmined as 3.1 years. being ihe lime period from the date the long-term Incenlwe
plan was inlioduced to the end of the qualilying period of semce.

The group recorded a tolal expense of £736.000 (yeas ended 31 Mulch 2019: £486, OMQ inrespect of Ihe increase in value of these
growth shates during the period. The canying volue of fhe associaled tabifify af the stofement of financiat position date was £1.222.¢36
(31 March 2019: £486.000).

Reserves o
Reserves of the group represent the lollowing:
Revaluation reserve

The revalualion reserve represents the cumulotive elleci ol revakiations of freehold land and bunlchngs wh:ch are revalued 1o tair valu@
at each reporting date,

Relained eatnings
Relained eainings represents cumulative profits of lossas net of dividends paid, copitalreductions and other cd]uslmenrs.

Revene acquisilion reserve

The reverse ocqmsmon reserve arose on the application ot reverse acqusition accounting in the consotdoted hnancxol statements,
and represents the share capilal and share premium acquired in Geofliey Osborne Limited.

Merger teserve

The merger reserve arose on Ihe application of merger accounting in the consolidated tinancial slalements, and represents Ihe
difference between the share capital issued in the share tor share exchange and the share capilal and shore premium acquired in
GCHO Holdings timiled.

Non-confrolling interes!

The non-controling interest represents the nominal vo@e of the ordinary 8 shares (growth shares} within vor?ms sdbs(dfuty cofnpor\ies.
fhe holders of these shares have no right to the (ncome, prolits or capital of the subsidiuiies apart rgm the liabilily aready recognised
as a cash-sellted share-based poyment,

Conlingent fabliiitles

The group hos given guarontees and indemnities in the notmal course of business in respect of the due pesformance of obligalions
under byilding gonlroéts and develbpment agieements. In the opinion of the directlors, no material loss will arise lom any of these

‘ eontingenl tiabitities.

in the nomal course of bisiness, claims are received: in relevant cases the board takes approptiate advice and makes a provision
where o future nabmly is pcobuble.

in ofl cases presently outstanding ogains! the group, aller having laken appiopriale legal advice, the direclers believe thot moterial
claims are not fkely fo be substantiated.
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27

28

29

Commitments under operaling leases
The group as lessee:
the group had tola) commitments under non-cancellable operating lecses as follows;

Land and bvildings
30 September 2020 31 March 2019
£000 £000
Ovue within one year 1.453 950
Due between two and five years 5538 3.739
Due afier live yeors 3.002 4,950
9.993 11,639

tn addifion the group had commitments lor numerous shorl lerm operating leases lor the hire of plant and maghinery noimally expiring
within one year. I is nol procilicabte to quanlify the annual commilment for such contracts. ’

.

The group as lessor:
‘The group had contracted with lenants. under non-cancellable operoting leases, for the following fulure minimum leose payments:

Land and buildings
30 September 2020 31 March 201¢
£000 £000
Due within one year 246 243
Due between two and five years 840 840
Due atter live years 420 735
1.506 1.818

The group’s operoting leases represent the sub-tease of two (31 March 2019: two propeities occupied by the group to third parties
negoliated over an average teose lerm ol 4.0 years (31 March 2019 4.7 years).

Copital commitments
The group had no copital commitments al 30 September 2020 {31 Morch 2019: £nil).

Directors’ emciuments

18 months ended Year ended

30 Sentember 2020 31 March 2019

£000 £000

Aggregate emoluments lor qualilying services 1.290 1.300
35 20

Contributions lo delined conlribution pension scheme

The number of direclors for whom refirement benefits are accruing under defined contiibution pension schemes amounted fo 3 {year
ended 31 March 2019: 3). The number of directors tor whom retirement benelits have accrued under defined benefit schemes

amounted to | {31 March 2019: 1).
No directors received shares in fellow group companies under long tem incentive schemes (year ended 31 March 2019: 2)

[}
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29

30

1)

Dheclors' 1 (")

Emotuments ond retirement benehls include the following amounts retating to the highest paid director:

Aggiegole emoluments for quotifying services

Company coniributions to defined contibufion pension scheme

Employees

Conshuclien
Infrc:shuc!we

Admlmslvuhon and cenhal lunchons
Property maintenonce ond supporl

Monulagtuing

Employment costs

Woges ond solanes
Soctcl secumy cosis
Other pension costs

Share:bosed payment

téss: costs capitalised

18 months ended Year ended
30 Seotember 2020 31 March 2019
£000 £000
- 519 612
13 10
532 622
The average monthly number of employees (including directors) employed by lhe group during the tinancial peﬂodwcs
Grovp Compony
18 months ended Year ended 18 months ended Year ended
30 Seotember 2020 31 March 2019 30 Sentember 2020 31 March 2019
Number Number Number Number
153 191 -
306 343 .
213 172
249 324 . -
45 52 - -
966 1,052 . .
Group Company
18 months ended Year ended 18 months ended Year ended
30 Septomber 2020 31 Mareh 2019 30 Sentember 2020 31 march 2019
£000 £000 £000 £000
48,922 51,977 -
7.725 5.230 B .
8,356 6374 -
736 484 - -
85,739 64,067 B .
{85) i - -
85,654 64,067 - .

Other pension costs reflect the contiibutions payable to the group's detined contribulion pension scheme and the defined beneti
costs recognised in the consolidoted income stalement.
Group employment costs includes termination costs of £1,550.000 (year ended 31 March 2019 : £nil).

Uiimate parent company and controlling party
Osborne Group Holdings Lid is the ulfimale parent undertaking and the only company to consclidate the company's !monc;ol
stalements. The directors do nol consider there lo be one ullimote conlroting party, -

a3
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32

33

M

Related party " .
Transactlions between the group and ils related parlies are disclosed befow:
Other related pariies
18 months ended Year ended
30 Saptember 2020 31 Moarch 2019
£000 €000
Rechaiges receivable . 501
Sale of construction services 5,245 2411
Services purchased . {12)
Cosls paid on behall of relaled parlies - {31)
Interest receivable 3 "
Management charges receivable §25 164
Loan receivable granted 2.000 N
Loon rec¢eivable repaid {2.000} .
30 September 2020 31 March 2019
} £00D £000
Amounts owed by related parties - 576

Other related patties compiise members of the Rosewood Group Holdings Ltd group. which & conlrolled by the same shareholders as
the group, Robinwood Properiies timited, which is Controlled by substantiolly the some shareholders as the group. and the group's joint
venlure, Howard Osborne LLP.

The amounts oulslanding al 30 September 2020 and 31 March 2019 are unsecured, repayable on demand and inletest tiee. No
guarantees have been given o1 teceived. At omounts oulsianding at 31 March 2019 were repaid in fult during the yeor.

The total remuneralion of the dire¢lors, who ore considered to be the key management personnel ot the group, was £1,489.000 {yeor
ended 31 March 2019: £1,494.000}, including employer’s national insurance of £164,000 (year ended 3t Morch 2019: £173.000).

Net debt reconciliation

30 September

Y Aprli 2019 Cash flows Other movements 2020

.£000 £000 €000 £000

Cosh_ot bonk and in hand 28,433 112,019 R 16,419
eanxioans - 17.108} (134§ {7.242)
Finance leose obligations 1598) 220 - 378]
27.840 (18.907) {4344 8.799

Other movemenis comprise the amortisalian of arrangement fees and ellective mlerest rale adiustments.

Events after the reporting pertod

On 16 February 2021. the group sold the entire issued share copitol of Osborne Developmenls {Norwich) Limited fot £ t¢ a member of
lhe Rosewood Group Holdings Limited group. a reloted parly. All amounts owed by Osborne Developments (Norwich} {imited to the
company were repaid on thol date.

On 18 Moy 2021, ihe group sotd the entire issued share capital ot Osborne Developments (Cotchester) Limited for £2,129,000 lo o
member of the Rosewood Group Holdings timiled group, a reloled parly. Osborne Developments (Colchester} Limded is a property
development and monagement company and owns and manages student accommodation in Colchester, Essex.

On 18 August 2021, the group announced the sale of lis interest in Osborme Infrastiucture Limited. The sale completed on 16
September 2021. The sale will facilitole the alignment of our remaining development, construction, properly servicés and
monulocluring businesses, -



